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CareerSource Heartland 
5901 US Hwy 27 South, Suite 1 

Sebring, Florida 33870 
 

Finance & Operations Committee Meeting 
Friday, October 15, 2021 – 1:30 p.m. 

MINUTES 
 

I. Call to order 
The meeting was called to order at 1:31 p.m. by Ms. Yessenia Irizarry, Committee Chair.  Ms. Irizarry inquired 
if any Requests for Public Comment had been made and was advised that none had been received. 

II. Introductions 
Roll was called to identify and confirm committee members present in the room and those participating by 
phone.  Staff and others present were identified (see end of meeting minutes for attendees).  It was 
determined that quorum had been established. 

III. Topics 
A. Presentation/discussion of: 

1. Financial Reports 
Financial reports for FY 2020-21 year-end June 30, 2021 and financial reports for FY 2021-22 July 
through August 31, 2021 were presented.  Two questions were posed about the incentive 
expenditures.  Staff reported that Incentive funds are restricted but can be spent on anything allowed 
by the specified funding source.  Using incentive funds for the expenditures reported in that category 
helped to extend the life of other funding sources.  Incentive expenditures are audited following the 
normal auditing procedures.  The Committee expressed no concerns with the information presented. 

B. Action Items: 
1. Review 2021-22 Internal Control Questionnaire and Assessment 

Referring to the action item in the agenda packet, Donna Doubleday (CSH President/CEO) explained 
that, using a form provided by DEO, CareerSource Heartland staff is required to conduct a self-
assessment of internal controls to identify if there are areas where additional controls may be 
needed to minimize risk to the organization.  Specifically, areas reviewed include effectiveness and 
efficiency, reliability of financial reporting, and compliance with laws and regulations.  The form has 
been completed and submitted to DEO.  Upon review of the document, committee member, Lois 
Hilton, asked about succession planning.  Staff reported there is a board approved succession plan in 
place for the President/CEO position, and that the Chief Finance and Programs Officers have been 
actively training the HR & Fiscal Coordinator and Quality Assurance/Compliance Coordinator 
respectively.  The committee had no other questions or concerns and voted to recommend that the 
Board acknowledge the results of the 2021-22 Internal Control Questionnaire and Assessment. 

• A motion was made by committee member, Lois Hilton, to acknowledge the PY2021-22 
Internal Control Questionnaire and Assessment as presented. 

• Motion seconded by committee member, Donald Samuels. 
• Motion carried unanimously. 

C. Info Items: 
1) RFP for Youth Services Provider: 

This is year 3 of 3 possible for the Youth Services contract.  A new RFP for Youth Services will be 
released on October 25, 2021 with responses due February 11, 2022.  Related to the current PYP 
contract, Ms. Doubleday informed the committee that the current PYP coordinator, Kamille Manalo, 
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resigned and that her last day will be tomorrow, October 16th.  In response to Ms. Irizarry’s question, 
Ms. Doubleday confirmed that the current youth services contractor, South Florida State College is 
eligible to respond to the RFP. 

2) PY 2020-21 Performance
CSH did not meet 12 of the 72 required performance measures for program year 20-21.  A copy of 
the performance results for the year is included in your packet.  Following guidance, staff has 
requested technical assistance from DEO.  DEO is in the process of analyzing the data and is working 
with the US Department of Labor using the regression model to determine how state (and local) 
performance compares statistically throughout the state and the nation.  Staff is awaiting additional 
information but reported that:

1. PY20-21 performance was severely impacted locally, statewide, and nationally due to covid.
2. None of Florida’s 24 workforce areas met all 72 performance measures.
3. 9 of the measures missed are in the Dislocated Worker (DW) program.  Preliminary data 

suggests that there are just 3 closed cases that are impacting the DW measures.

3) SFSC / PYP Performance Holdback Funds
One of the measures missed was a youth measure that impacts SFSC’s Panther Youth Program.  CSH’s 
contract with SFSC contains a performance holdback clause.  Last year the Board voted to approve 
paying SFSC all funds held back since the missed measures appeared to be covid related and beyond 
their control.  However, the WIOA law identifies program year 2020-2021 as the first year that 
sanctions should be imposed for contractors not meeting performance measures.  DEO suggests 
waiting for regression model results and final DOL guidance before taking any action on this.  This 
will be addressed once DOL’s results are final.  The total unpaid to SFSC was $10,268.94.

4) Single Independent Audit
James Moore has finalized and submitted the Single Independent Audit and will present results at 
the January 2022 Board meeting.  There were no findings.

5) Monitoring by Taylor, Hall, Miller, Parker scheduled October 19th – 21st
Taylor, Hall, Miller, Parker P.A is performing Administrative/Fiscal, Programmatic, and One-Stop 
monitoring October 19th – 21st.

6) Monitoring by DEO scheduled December 6th – 10th

DEO is scheduled to perform Administrative/Fiscal, Programmatic, and One-Stop monitoring the 
week of December 6th.

D. Review of President/CEO travel and credit card charges:
Sheryl Elliott (CFO) presented the President/CEO’s expenses from 6/18/2021-9/30/2021 which consisted
of 4 local travel reimbursement checks totaling $420.52 and no credit card charges.

Committee Chair, Yessenia Irizarry, asked if there were any questions or concerns on the expenses as
presented.  None were noted.

I. Other
No other matters were brought before the committee.

II. Adjourn
Committee Chair, Yessenia Irizarry, adjourned the meeting at 1:52 p.m.

Committee members present and participating:  Yessenia Irizarry (Chair), Lois Hilton, Raymond Royce, and Donald Samuels 

Committee members absent:  Mary Dow, Denise Grimsley, Thomas Leitzel, 

Public attendance:  None 

CSH staff present:  Donna Doubleday, Sheryl Elliott, and Brian Mercurio 
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CareerSource Heartland 
5901 US Hwy 27 South 
Sebring, Florida 33870 

 
CareerSource Heartland General Board of Directors Meeting 

Wednesday, October 20, 2021 
 

MINUTES 

Prior to convening the meeting, David Royal (Chair-Elect) led the group in an invocation and the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

I. Call to order 
A. The meeting was called to order at 1:35 p.m. by Raymond Royce (Chair of the Board of Directors). 
B. Mr. Royce inquired if any ‘Request for Public Comment’ had been made and was advised that none 

had. 

II. Introductions 
Mr. Royce introduced himself and then called for introductions by Board members and others, including 
those participating by phone.  See end of minutes for all attendees. 

III. Set/Amend Agenda 
With no changes proposed, Mr. Royce called for a motion to accept/approve the meeting agenda. 

• A motion was made by Board member, David Royal, to approve the agenda. 
• Motion seconded by Board member, Gary Ritter. 
• Motion carried. 

IV. Consent Items  
Mr. Royce inquired if there were any questions/corrections to any of the minutes presented.  No 
corrections were noted.  He called for a motion to accept the minutes from the June 8, 2021 Business 
Enhancement Committee, June 17, 2021 Finance and Operations Committee, and June 23, 2021 Joint 
Board meetings. 

• A motion was made by Board member, Gary Ritter, to approve the presented minutes. 
• Motion was seconded by Board member, David Royal. 
• Motion carried. 

V. Executive Board/ Board of Directors Chair Actions  
A. Executive Board: Commissioner Kelly Owens, Chair  

Action Item(s): 
1. None 

Executive Board meeting was rescheduled for October 27, 2021. 

B. Board of Directors:  Raymond Royce, Chair 
Action Item(s): 

1. None 

Information Item(s): 

1. Potential Board Member – Emily Miller – Miller Dynamics 
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Donna Doubleday (CSH President/CEO) informed the Board that Emily Miller, Program Director 
of Miller Dynamics Emergency Services Training is seeking approval to join the CSH 
Board representing Highlands private business/private training provider.  
Review/approval of Ms. Miller’s nomination for appointment will occur at the upcoming 
Executive Board meeting on 10/27/2021. 

VI. Presentations 
A. Shannon Kuen, Center Branch Manager – CSH Job Seeker Services 

Ms. Kuen, the Highlands Center Branch Manager provided a PowerPoint presentation walking through 
the steps a new job seeker would go through from the initial orientation through to job matching and 
employment follow up. 

B. Donna Doubleday, CSH President / CEO – Reimagining Education and Career Help Act (REACH) 
Ms. Doubleday, CSH President/CEO, provided a PowerPoint presentation highlighting the provisions in 
HB 1507 which was signed into law on June 24, 2021, effective July 1, 2021. 

VII. Committee Reports/Actions 
A. Finance & Operations Committee:  Yessenia Irizarry, Board Chair 

Yessenia Irizarry reported that the Finance & Operations Committee met on 10/15/2021 to 
review/discuss the financial reports, President/CEO credit card charges, various information items, 
and the action item below.  A quorum was present at this meeting. 
Ms. Irizarry announced that the financial reports for FY 2020-21 year-end June 30, 2021, and financial 
reports for FY 2021-22 July through August 31, 2021, were presented.  As explained by Ms. Irizarry, 
two questions were posed regarding the incentive expenditures.  During the F&O Committee meeting, 
staff explained that Incentive funds are restricted but can be spent on anything allowed by the 
specified funding source.  Using incentive funds for the expenditures reported in that category helped 
to extend the life of other funding sources.  Incentive expenditures are audited following the normal 
auditing procedures.  The Board expressed no concerns with the information presented and no 
expenditure questions were noted. 
The committee reviewed the President/CEO’s expenses from 6/18/2021-9/30/2021 which consisted 
of 4 local travel reimbursement checks totaling $420.52 and no credit card charges. 

Information Items: 
• RFP for Youth Services Provider: 

This is year 3 of 3 possible for the Youth Services contract.  A new RFP for Youth Services will 
be released on October 25, 2021 with responses due February 11, 2022. 

• PY 2020-21 Performance 
CSH did not meet 12 of the 72 required performance measures for program year 20-21.  A 
copy of the performance results for the year was included in the Board packet.  Following 
guidance, staff has requested technical assistance from DEO.  DEO is in the process of 
analyzing the data and is working with the US Department of Labor using the regression model 
to determine how state (and local) performance compares statistically throughout the state 
and the nation.  Staff is awaiting additional information but reported that:  

1. PY20-21 performance was severely impacted locally, statewide, and nationally due to 
covid. 

2. None of Florida’s 24 workforce areas met all 72 performance measures. 
3. 9 of the measures missed are in the Dislocated Worker (DW) program.  Preliminary data 

suggests that there are just 3 closed cases that are impacting the DW measures. 
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• SFSC / PYP Holdback Funds 
One of the measures missed was a youth measure that impacts SFSC’s Panther Youth 
Program.  CSH’s contract with SFSC contains a performance holdback clause.  Last year the 
Board voted to approve paying SFSC all funds held back since the missed measures appeared 
to be covid related and beyond their control.  However, the WIOA law identifies program year 
2020-2021 as the first year that sanctions should be imposed for contractors not meeting 
performance measures.  DEO suggests waiting for regression model results and final DOL 
guidance before taking any action on this.  This will be addressed once DOL’s results are final.  
The total unpaid to SFSC is $10,268.94. 

• Single Independent Audit 
James Moore has finalized and submitted the Single Independent Audit and will present 
results at the January 2022 Board meeting.  There were no findings. 

• Monitoring by Taylor, Hall, Miller, Parker scheduled October 19th – 21st 
Taylor, Hall, Miller, Parker P.A is performing Administrative/Fiscal, Programmatic, and One-
Stop monitoring October 19th – 21st. 

• Monitoring by DEO scheduled December 6th – 10th 
DEO is scheduled to perform Administrative/Fiscal, Programmatic, and One-Stop monitoring 
the week of December 6th. 

1. Action Item:  Review and Acknowledge Internal Control Questionnaire and Assessment 
Referring to the Action Item in the Board packet, Ms. Irizarry explained that, using a form provided 
by DEO, CareerSource Heartland staff is required to conduct a self-assessment of internal controls 
to identify if there are areas where additional controls may be needed to minimize risk to the 
organization.  Specifically, areas reviewed include effectiveness and efficiency, reliability of 
financial reporting, and compliance with laws and regulations.  The form has been completed and 
submitted to DEO.  Upon review of the document, the F&O Committee asked about succession 
planning and staff reported that there is a Board approved succession plan in place for the 
President/CEO.  The Chief Finance and Programs Officers have been actively training the HR & 
Fiscal Coordinator and Quality Assurance/Compliance Coordinator respectively.  The committee 
had no other questions or concerns and voted to recommend that the Board acknowledge the 
results of the 2021-22 Internal Control Questionnaire and Assessment. 

• A motion was made by Board member, Yessenia Irizarry, to acknowledge the PY2021-22 
Internal Control Questionnaire and Assessment as presented. 

• Motion seconded by Board member, David Royal. 
• Motion carried. 

VIII.   Executive Reports 
A. President/CEO Report:  Donna Doubleday 

The report was as presented in the packet with specific mention made to the points below. 

• Sector Strategies Roundtable 
The Sector Strategies Roundtable was held on September 15, 2021.  Businesses attending the 
roundtable reported the need for more marketing that spotlights manufacturing as a career.  As 
part of that initiative, a draft Manufacturing Career Pathways Guide is currently under 
development.  A survey conducted to determine the frequency of meetings resulted in a change 
from holding quarterly roundtables to meeting twice a year.  The next meeting is anticipated to 
be held in March, 2022. 
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• Board Vacancies 
Cauney Bamberg has resigned.  CSH is awaiting the new AARP nominee.  As already discussed, 
Emily Miller intends to assume her husband’s seat on the Board. 

• Panther Youth Program Coordinator Resignation 
Kamile Manalo, the Coordinator of the Panther Youth Program (South Florida State College) 
resigned to pursue other opportunities.  Interviewing has taken place and a recommendation for 
Ms. Manalo’s replacement is in process. 

• CSH as Hardee County IDA Administrative and Fiscal Entity 
We continue to await feedback from the Hardee County Industrial Authority concerning the 
process draft submitted regarding the possibility of CSH serving as the administrative and fiscal 
entity for job the IDA’s job training for local businesses. 

• Staff Recruiting Efforts 
CSH Staff continues to contact self-registrants in Employ Florida to advise of services and jobs 
available.   CSH is testing Indeed’s recruiting option to ascertain our return on investment in 
locating candidates to fill open positions. 

• HB 1507 
HB 1507 is as presented in the REACH Act PowerPoint presentation.  Additional bills to be aware 
of:  1) SB 514, which does have a companion house bill, allows government entities to substitute 
equivalent work experience for a post-secondary education requirement.  2) SB 382 allows 
workforce training to be paid at a rate less than the state minimum wage under certain 
conditions. 

• ITA 20% Expense Waiver 
CSH did submit a 20% ITA expense waiver but are still awaiting response. 

B. Programs Report: 
As presented in the packet with no items of note and no questions asked.  

C. Finance Report: 
Financial reports for FY 2020-21 year-end June 30, 2021 and financial reports for FY 2021-22 July 
through August 31, 2021 were presented as explained by Ms. Irizarry in her report on the activities of 
the F&O Committee. 

IX. Time for Board Members/Other 
A. Economic Development updates were reported on by Kaylee King for Okeechobee County with 

information on additional county doings provided by Gary Ritter (CSH Board member & Okeechobee 
City Administrator).  Meghan DiGiacomo presented updates for Highlands County.  Representatives 
for DeSoto and Hardee counties were not present. 

B. Other items of interest by/for Board Members 
• Branch managers Shannon Kuen and Mary Smith presented updates for Highlands and 

Okeechobee counties.  Ms. Smith also read a One-Stop Center update statement for the DeSoto 
and Hardee centers prepared by Regional Branch Manager, Lenora White. 

VIII. Next Board Meeting 
Mr. Royce announced the next board meeting will be held on January 26, 2022 at CSH office in Sebring. 

IX. Adjourn 
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As there were no other matters brought before the Board of Directors and/or the Executive Board, the 
meeting was adjourned at 3:02 p.m. 

 
Board members present/participating:  Raymond Royce – Chair, David Royal – Chair Elect, Yessenia Irizarry – Secretary/Treasurer, Russell Brown, Meredith 
Durastanti, Denise Grimsley, Heather Harshman, Lois Hilton, Kaylee King, Wayne Olson, Gary Ritter, Angel Wiggins 
 
Board members absent:  Mary Kay Burns, Kevin Cundiff, Elizabeth Densmore, Mary Dow, Joshua Exendine, Sondra Guffey, Thomas Leitzel, Donald Samuels, 
Lisa Thomas, Amanda Wilson 
 
Executive Board members present/participating:  None 
 
CareerSource Heartland staff present/participating:  Donna Doubleday, Ann Martin, Shannon Kuen, Mary Smith, Brian Mercurio 
 
Public attendance:  Meghan DiGiacomo 
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CareerSource Heartland 
5901 US Hwy 27 South 
Sebring, Florida 33870 

 
CareerSource Heartland Executive Board of Directors Meeting 

Wednesday, October 27, 2021 
 

MINUTES 

Prior to convening the meeting, Commissioner Owens (Executive Board Chair) led the group in the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

I. Call to order 
A. The meeting was called to order at 10 a.m. by Commissioner Owens (Chair of the Executive Board). 
B. Commissioner Owens inquired if any ‘Request for Public Comment’ had been made and was advised 

that none had. 

II. Introductions 
Commissioner Owens introduced herself and the other Executive Board members participating in-person 
and by phone.  See end of minutes for all attendees. 

III. Set/Amend Agenda 
With no changes proposed, Commissioner Owens called for a motion to accept/approve the meeting 
agenda. 

• A motion was made by Executive Board member, Commissioner Gross, to approve the agenda. 
• Motion seconded by Executive Board member, Commissioner Roberts. 
• Motion carried. 

IV. Consent Items  
Commissioner Owens inquired if there were any questions/corrections to any of the minutes presented.  
No corrections were noted.  She called for a motion to accept the minutes from the June 8, 2021 Business 
Enhancement Committee, June 17, 2021 Finance and Operations Committee, and June 23, 2021 Joint 
Board meetings. 

• A motion was made by Executive Board member, Commissioner Roberts, to approve the presented 
minutes. 

• Motion was seconded by Executive Board member, Commissioner Gross. 
• Motion carried. 

V. Executive Board/ Board of Directors Chair Actions  
A. Executive Board: Commissioner Kelly Owens, Chair  

Action Item(s): 
1. Potential Board Member – Emily Miller – Miller Dynamics 

Commissioner Owens explained the responsibility of the Executive Board in the appointment of 
new Board members and announced the intent of Emily Miller to join the CSH Board 
representing Highlands private business as well as joining as a private training provider.  Ms. 
Miller is the Program Director of Miller Dynamics Emergency Services Training.  Commissioner 
Owens informed the Board that Donna Doubleday (CSH President/CEO) completed the vetting 
process and presents Ms. Miller for nomination.  Commissioner Owens proceeded with reading 
aloud a brief biography of Ms. Miller. 
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• A motion was made by Executive Board member, Commissioner Roberts, to approve 
nomination of Emily Miller to the CSH Board. 

• Motion seconded by Executive Board member, Commissioner Gross. 
• Motion carried. 

B. Board of Directors:  Raymond Royce, Chair 
Action Item(s): 

1. None 

VI. Presentations 
A. Shannon Kuen, Center Branch Manager – CSH Job Seeker Services 

Commissioner Owens informed the Board that the Job Seeker Services presentation is in the Board 
packet as presented.  No questions or concerns were noted. 

B. Donna Doubleday, CSH President / CEO – Reimagining Education and Career Help Act (REACH) 
Ms. Doubleday reviewed the PowerPoint presentation slides included in the Board packet.  Her review 
highlighted the pursuits of CSF/DEO to obtain a waiver allowing the state board to fulfill the roles and 
responsibilities of LWDBs or reduce the number of LWDBs based on population and community 
patterns.  Ms. Doubleday expressed her concern that smaller LWDBs, if absorbed by larger neighboring 
counties, may see reduced representation and services.  Discussion ensued, with Executive Board 
members requesting that Ms. Doubleday keep them informed of developments, and offering 
assistance as deemed necessary and appropriate.  

VII. Committee Reports/Actions 
A. Finance & Operations Committee:  Yessenia Irizarry, Board Chair 

Ms. Doubleday reported that the Finance & Operations Committee met on 10/15/2021 to 
review/discuss the financial reports, President/CEO credit card charges, various information items, 
and the action item below.  Quorum had been established at this meeting. 
Ms. Doubleday announced that the financial reports for FY 2020-21 year-end June 30, 2021, and 
financial reports for FY 2021-22 July through August 31, 2021, were presented.  As explained by Ms. 
Doubleday, two questions were asked regarding the use and monitoring of incentive expenditures.  
Ms. Doubleday explained that Incentive funds are restricted but can be spent on anything allowed by 
the specified funding source.  Close to $100,000 was used on marketing.  The use of incentive funds 
helps to extend the life of other funding sources.  Incentive expenditures are audited following the 
normal auditing procedures.  The Board expressed no concerns with the information presented and 
no expenditure questions were noted. 
The committee reviewed the President/CEO’s expenses from 6/18/2021-9/30/2021 which consisted 
of 4 local travel reimbursement checks totaling $420.52 and no credit card charges. 

Information Items: 
• RFP for Youth Services Provider: 

This is year 3 of 3 possible for the Youth Services contract.  A new RFP for Youth Services was 
released on October 25, 2021 with responses due February 11, 2022. 

• PY 2020-21 Performance 
CSH did not meet 12 of the 72 required performance measures for program year 20-21.  A 
copy of the performance results for the year is included in the Board packet.  Following 
guidance, staff requested technical assistance from DEO.  DEO is in the process of analyzing 
the data and is working with the US Department of Labor using the regression model to 
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determine how state (and local) performance compares statistically throughout the state and 
the nation.  Staff is awaiting additional information but reported that:  

1. PY20-21 performance was severely impacted locally, statewide, and nationally due to 
covid. 

2. None of Florida’s 24 workforce areas met all 72 performance measures. 
3. 9 of the measures missed are in the Dislocated Worker (DW) program.  Preliminary data 

suggests that there are just 3 closed cases that are impacting the DW measures. 

• SFSC / PYP Holdback Funds 
One of the measures missed was a youth measure that impacts SFSC’s Panther Youth 
Program.  CSH’s contract with SFSC contains a performance holdback clause.  Last year the 
Board voted to approve paying SFSC all funds held back since the missed measures appeared 
to be covid related and beyond their control.  However, the WIOA law identifies program year 
2020-2021 as the first year that sanctions should be imposed for contractors not meeting 
performance measures.  DEO suggests waiting for regression model results and final DOL 
guidance before taking any action on this.  This will be addressed once DOL’s results are final.  
The total unpaid to SFSC is $10,268.94. 

• Single Independent Audit 
James Moore has finalized and submitted the Single Independent Audit and will present 
results at the January 2022 Board meeting.  There were no findings. 

• Monitoring by Taylor, Hall, Miller, Parker scheduled October 19th – 21st 
Taylor, Hall, Miller, Parker P.A is just completed the Administrative/Fiscal, Programmatic, and 
One-Stop monitoring.  The process went smoothly but the final report is not yet available. 

• Monitoring by DEO is scheduled December 6th – 10th 
DEO is scheduled to perform Administrative/Fiscal, Programmatic, and One-Stop monitoring 
the week of December 6th. 

1. Action Item:  Review and Acknowledge Internal Control Questionnaire and Assessment 
Referring to the Action Item in the Board packet, Commissioner Owens explained that, the 
Internal Control Questionnaire and Assessment (ICQ) was developed by the Department of 
Economic Opportunity (DEO), Bureau of Financial Monitoring and Accountability, as a self-
assessment tool to help evaluate whether a system of sound internal control exists within the 
Local Workforce Development Board.  An effective system of internal control provides reasonable 
assurance that management’s goals are being properly pursued.  CSH completed the PY2021-22 
self-assessment and submitted the completed document to DEO on 9/23/2021. 

In addition, Ms. Doubleday informed the Board that CSH does have an approved formal 
succession plan in place for the President/CEO.  An informal plan exists for the Chief Finance Office 
and the Programs Officer.  Both the CFO and Programs Office have been training staff in case of 
an emergency. 

• A motion was made by Executive Board member, Commissioner Gross, to acknowledge the 
PY2021-22 Internal Control Questionnaire and Assessment as presented. 

• Motion seconded by Executive Board member, Commissioner Roberts. 
• Motion carried. 
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VIII.   Executive Reports 
A. President/CEO Report:  Donna Doubleday 

The report was as presented in the packet with specific mention made to the points below. 

• Sector Strategies Roundtable 
The Sector Strategies Roundtable was held on September 15th 2021.  Businesses attending the 
roundtable reported the need for more marketing that spotlights manufacturing as a career.  As 
part of that initiative, a draft Manufacturing Career Pathways Guide is currently under 
development.  A survey conducted to determine the frequency of meetings resulted in a change 
from holding quarterly roundtables to meeting twice a year.  The next meeting is anticipated to 
be held in March, 2022. 

B. Programs Report: 
As presented in the packet with no items of note and no questions asked.  

C. Finance Report: 
Financial reports for FY 2020-21 year-end June 30, 2021 and financial reports for FY 2021-22 July 
through August 31, 2021 were presented as explained by Ms. Doubleday in her report on the activities 
of the F&O Committee. 

IX. Time for Board Members/Other 
Specific Economic Development updates and CSH branch manager updates were not presented. 

VIII. Next Board Meeting 
Commissioner Owens announced the next board meeting will be held on January 26, 2022 at CSH office 
in Sebring. 

IX. Adjourn 
As there were no other matters brought before the Executive Board, the meeting was adjourned at 
10:42 a.m. 

 
Board members present/participating:  None 
 
Board members absent:  None 
 
Executive Board members present/participating:  Commissioner Owens – Executive Chair, Commissioner Roberts – Executive Chair Elect, Commissioner 
George, Commissioner Gross 
 
CareerSource Heartland staff present/participating:  Donna Doubleday, Brian Mercurio 
 
Public attendance:  Emily Miller 



SECTION 1 



 

 

ACTION ITEM: EXECUTIVE BOARD 

Board Member Nomination 

Pursuant to the Workforce Innovation and Innovation Act and as set forth in the Heartland 
Workforce Investment Consortium’s Interlocal Agreement, CareerSource Heartland’s (CSH) 
Executive Board is responsible for appointing members to the CSH Board of Directors.  The 
membership must be consistent with the requirements of federal and state law.  New 
members must be appointed to fill the same category of membership.  There is no 
requirement for new members to be from the same organization, institution, or company as 
the member being replaced. 

A majority of members (51%) must be representatives from businesses in the local area who 
are owners of a business, chief executives, or other individuals with optimum policymaking 
or hiring authority.  Business members must have employment opportunities that include 
highquality work relevant training and development in indemand industry sectors or 
occupations available in the local area.  At least two representatives of small businesses 
should be included.  Individuals must be nominated by local business organizations and/or 
business trade associations. 

In accordance with these guidelines, CSH’s President/CEO has completed the vetting process 
and presents the nominated candidate, Andrea Broomfield (Senior Human Resources Business 
Partner for HCA Florida Raulerson Hospital), for consideration.  The Chair of the Executive Board will 
present the nominee’s short biography. 

 
 
 
Action Requested: 
Executive Board to consider confirmation of Andrea Broomfield as a member of CSH’s Board 
of Directors. 



 

 

ACTION ITEM: EXECUTIVE BOARD 

Board Member Nomination 

Pursuant to the Workforce Innovation and Innovation Act and as set forth in the Heartland 
Workforce Investment Consortium’s Interlocal Agreement, CareerSource Heartland’s (CSH) 
Executive Board is responsible for appointing members to the CSH Board of Directors.  The 
membership must be consistent with the requirements of federal and state law.  New 
members must be appointed to fill the same category of membership.  There is no 
requirement for new members to be from the same organization, institution, or company as 
the member being replaced. 

A majority of members (51%) must be representatives from businesses in the local area who 
are owners of a business, chief executives, or other individuals with optimum policymaking 
or hiring authority.  Business members must have employment opportunities that include 
highquality work relevant training and development in indemand industry sectors or 
occupations available in the local area.  At least two representatives of small businesses 
should be included.  Individuals must be nominated by local business organizations and/or 
business trade associations. 

In accordance with these guidelines, CSH’s President/CEO has completed the vetting process 
and presents the nominated candidate, Allen Moore (Business Owner / Regional Sales Manager for 
Source One Solutions), for consideration.  The Chair of the Executive Board will present the 
nominee’s short biography. 

 
 
 
Action Requested: 
Executive Board to consider confirmation of Allen Moore as a member of CSH’s Board of 
Directors. 



SECTION 2 



ACTION ITEM: 

Workforce Services Contract - DeSoto Memorial Hospital  
 
 
In 2013, this Board approved the use of Workforce Services Contracts which allow the 
President/CEO to enter into master contracts with an organization represented by a board 
member.  Related-party contracts require approval of 2/3

rds of board members present at a 
meeting, a quorum having been established.  Typically, work-based training funds are requested 
by organizations represented by board members.  Workforce Services Contracts have proven to 
be a successful method of obtaining board approval for expenditure of these funds on a related -
party business, eliminating the need to call special meetings for this purpose. 
 
DeSoto Memorial Hospital has requested work-based training funds in the amount of $4,000 for 
approximately 6 medical staff members to access various medical related training opportunities.   
 
Staff requests approval of a Workforce Services Contract for this purpose, with a completion date 
of June 30, 2022.  

 
 As this is a related-party contract, Lois Hilton, CSH Board member and Desoto Memorial 

Hospital employee, must abstain from voting on this action and sign a conflict of interest 
form. 

 
Action Requested: 
Consider approval of a Workforce Services Contract with DeSoto Memorial Hospital in the amount 
of $4,000 with a completion date of June 30, 2022. 
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James Halleran, CPA  

ORGANIZATION: 

James Moore Certified Public 
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Heartland Workforce Investment Board, Inc. 
DBA: CareerSource Heartland 

Audit for the Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

  James Halleran, CPA  
  Partner 
  Daytona Beach 
  www.jmco.com 
  386.257.4100 
  James.Halleran@jmco.com 

Overview 

 Thank You 

 Audit Process 

Required Communications 

 Our Responsibility in Relation to Financial Statement Audit 

 Significant Estimates and/or Disclosures 
o Note 2 – Liquidity and Availability 
o Note 3 – Concentrations of Credit Risk and Significant Funding Source  
o Note 7 – Operating Leases 
o Note 9 – Risks and Uncertainties 

 Significant Difficulties Performing Audit, Disagreements with Management - None 

 Audit Adjustments – None 

 Passed Audit Adjustments - One for $24,000 related to prepaid insurance 

 One Recommendation – Information Technology 

Independent Auditor Reports on: 

 Financial Statements (pages 1-2) - Unmodified Opinion 

 Internal Control and Compliance (pages 14-15) - No findings 

 Internal Control and Compliance over Major Federal Program (pages 19-20) - No 
findings 

Financial Highlights 

 Revenues - $3,475,976 

o Federal grants: Increase of approximately $299k (9.42%) from prior year 

o Local grants: Decrease of approximately $400 (8.72%) from prior year 

 Expenses - $3,467,649 

o Increase of approximately $299k (3.09%) from prior year 

 Net Position - $(24,658) 

o Total: Increase of approximately $8k (25.24%) from prior year (All 
Unrestricted) 

 



PRESENTER: 

Dianna Feo, Busines Operations Manager 

ORGANIZATION: 

Career Source Heartland 
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CareerSource Heartland
Employer Service 

Delivery 

An equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services available upon request to individuals with disabilities. All voice 
telephone numbers may be reached by persons using TTY/TDD equipment via the Florida Relay Service at 711.

What does service delivery look like 
to employers? 

1. Initial Contact

2. On-Site Employer Visits

3. Business Assessment

4. Partnership

Assessment 

• Tour
• Working conditions
• Positions within the business
• Credentials / Experience needs
• Background issues
• Job descriptions
• Current/projected employee training

needs

1

2

3
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Assessment 

• Promotion policies
• Best candidates
• Best employees
• Benefits
• Culture
• Current/projected hiring needs

Portfolio of Services

• Job postings
• Pre-screening of candidates
• Referrals to open positions
• Assistance with job descriptions
• Provision of labor market 

information

Portfolio of Services

• Hiring events/Job Fairs
• Funding for employee training
• Use of CSH facilities for hiring-related

activities
• Rapid response to layoffs and business  

closures
• Provision of information
• Workforce development

4

5

6
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CASE STUDIES

ACTUAL EMPLOYERS

Retail First time using CSH services

• CSH initiated contact with the employer, 
conducted assessment, shared services available

• Employer elected to post open positions
• Job matching to open positions occurred
• Employer attended CSH job fair
• Successful placements on job orders 
• Employer scored CSH high on employer 

satisfaction survey 

Hospitality Repeat user of CSH services

• Employer requested job posting, job matching, 
and on-site hiring event w/promotion

• Job openings were entered into Employ Florida
• Job matching completed
• CSH created flyers for the hiring event
• Flyers were posted on social media, in Centers, 

and in the community
• Also promoted the event via email blasts

7

8

9
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Hospitality continued

• Served as the host for the employer’s 
hiring event 

• Answered applicant questions about the 
open jobs, provided directions on 
completing the application, and directed 
applicants to interviews

• Employer scored CSH high on employer 
satisfaction survey 

Manufacturer repeat user of CSH services

• Employer initiated contact, seeking new 
referrals on posted job orders

• CSH Business Representative worked 
closely with employer, suggested 
material changes to the job orders

• Changes resulted in additional referrals 
• Employer hired 3 from the referrals made

Manufacturer new user of services

• CSH initiated contact, new business 
• Business assessment conducted
• Portfolio of services explained 
• Assisted employer with coordination and 

promotion of hiring event on their site
• Posted open jobs in Employ Florida
• Provided Labor Market Information

10

11

12
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Manufacturer continued

• Created flyers for event promotion
• Posted flyers on social media, in 

Centers, and throughout community
• Promoted event through email blasts
• Co-hosted the event

Manufacturer continued

• Positions were filled, business opened
• Company continues to use CSH 

services, posting open positions, 
participating in job fairs, and 
requesting other services as needed

Health/Medical repeat user of services

• Employer contacted CSH, requested 
funds to train current employees

• CSH Business Representative gathered 
information  

• CSH Business Representative explained 
the process, assisted employer through 
the application process

13

14

15
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Health/Medical continued 

• After training completion, CSH 
Business Representative guided 
employer through the reimbursement 
process 

Health/Medical continued 

• Increased skill levels of the trained 
employees 

• Increased service capability of the 
business

16

17

18
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ACTION ITEM: 

South Florida State College/Panther Youth Program 
Performance Holdback Funds 

 
CareerSource Heartland’s (CSH) contracts for youth services with South Florida State 
College (SFSC) Panther Youth Partners (PYP) have performance holdback clauses.  Ten 
percent of each invoice is held back until the end of the year, pending achievement of 
performance measures.  The measures are the same measures CSH is required to achieve. 
SFSC’s PYP programs account for almost 100% of CSH’s performance on Youth measures.   
 
Each measure is weighted, so that each earns back a specific percentage of the total 
expensed.  For FY20-21, the total held back was $64,213.95.  The total paid to SFSC at the 
end of the year was $53,945.01.  While SFSC/PYP typically meets all measures, one 
measure was missed in the 3rd quarter. This equated to $10,268.94 of expended funds 
that CSH was not able to reimburse, according to the contract terms.   
 
During the recent technical assistance meeting with the Department of Economic 
Opportunity, CSH staff was advised that the 4th quarter data for the fiscal year (which 
accounts for 1 full year of data) counts as the Local Workforce Development Board’s 
annual performance.  The 4th quarter data indicates that SFSC met all measures. Based on 
this information, staff recommends paying SFSC the remaining $10,268.94 of FY20-21 
holdback funds.  
 

 As a related-party contract, Tom Leitzel, CSH Board member and employee of South 
Florida State College, must abstain from voting on this action and must sign a conflict-
of-interest form.   

 
Action Requested: 
CSH staff respectfully requests approval to pay SFSC/PYP the remaining FY20-21 
performance holdback funds totaling $10,268.94.  
  



ACTION ITEM: 

Request Transfer of Dislocated Worker Funding to Adult Funding 
 
 
With the approval of the Governor, WIOA sec. 133(b)(4) provides the authority for LWDBs 
to transfer up to 100 percent of the funds allocated for dislocated worker activities for 
expenditure on adult activities.  LWDBs interested in transferring one program’s funding 
for another must request prior approval from Florida’s Department of Economic 
Opportunity.  
 
Staff respectfully requests Board approval to submit a request to transfer $300,692.00   
of FY 2020-2021 allocated dislocated worker funding for expenditure on adult activities.  
This equates to 80 % of that fiscal year’s dislocated worker funds.   
 
Rationale: 
 
1. Most individuals who are currently enrolled or are seeking training are eligible under 

the adult program, but not under the dislocated worker program.  
2. Most individuals who would qualify for dislocated worker funds are interested in 

returning to work and are not seeking training.   
3. The region’s unemployment rate is 4.2% and decreasing.   
4. It is anticipated that adult funding would be depleted prior to the end of the fiscal 

year if this request is not granted.  
5. Outreach activities have not successfully recruited new dislocated workers.  Activities 

have included visits to educational classrooms, social media posts, presentations to 
civic groups and partner entities, and flyers posted in underserved neighborhoods.   

6. Transfer of dislocated worker funds for adult expenditures will not adversely impact 
the provision of services.   There are no known pending layoffs that may impact the 
need for dislocated workers in the local area.  

 
 

Action Requested: 

Approval to submit a request to transfer $300,692.00 of FY 2020-2021 allocated 
dislocated worker funding for expenditures on adult activities.   



ACTION ITEM: 

Request for Sunshine Staffing to Serve as Employer of Record for 
CareerSource Heartland Temporary Employment Needs 

 
 
On occasion, CareerSource Heartland would benefit from the ability to utilize a staffing 
agency to meet short-term, temporary hiring needs.  Examples include employee 
vacations or extended leaves of absence and unexpected or long-term position openings.    
 
CSH staff respectfully requests the opportunity to use Sunshine Staffing as a vendor to 
serve as employer of record for CSH temporary employees as the need arises.  Board 
approval is needed because Sunshine Staffing is considered a related party.  Jessy Irizarry 
is a CSH Board member and employee of Sunshine Staffing.   The maximum dollar amount 
requested for this purpose through June 30, 2022 is $7500.  
 
When a front-line staff member resigned unexpectedly, CSH contacted two other staffing 
agencies to assist with short-term staffing needs.  One company indicated they only 
provide blue collar workers.   Although CSH signed an agreement with the second 
company, that company did not successfully provide the needed services.  Historically, 
Sunshine Staffing has been responsive to the needs of this organization.   
 

 As a related-party contract, Jessy Irizarry, CSH Board member and employee of 
Sunshine Staffing, must abstain from voting on this action and must sign a conflict-
of-interest form. 

 
Approval by two/thirds of the board, a quorum having been established, is required.  

 

Action Requested: 

Approval for CSH to use Sunshine Staffing as a vendor to serve as employer of record for 
CSH temporary employees as the need arises, through June 30, 2022, allowing an amount 
not to exceed $7,500.00 for this purpose.  



ACTION ITEM: 
Disposal/Donation of Equipment 

 
 
CareerSource Heartland (CSH) staff has identified electronic equipment that is outmoded, 
unusable, or not worthy of upgrade in our current operating environment.  
 
Some of the excess equipment is non-functional, but some is still functional and could possibly be 
used by a not-for-profit organization in a basic setting.  Staff has cleaned the hard drives of these 
computers and has removed all data.  
 
Equipment List for Disposal/Donation (See attached list) 
Eleven (11) computers 
Three (3) monitors  
 
CareerSource Heartland is required to donate useful excess equipment/furniture to non-profit 
organizations/entities.  A notice of excess equipment will be released upon Board approval of this 
action item.  Non-profit entities will be asked to submit a request for the desired items and 
donations will be made on a “first-come-first-served” basis. 
 
Staff is requesting approval to donate these items to non-profit entities, and to dispose of any 
remaining items which have not been picked up by March 1, 2022.  
 
 
Action Requested: 
 
Staff is respectfully requesting approval to donate the identified equipment items to non-profit 
entities, and to dispose of any remaining items which have not been picked-up by March 1, 2022. 
 



Donation or Disposal of Physical Asset Equipment 

Request for donation or disposal of itemized electronic equipment that is deemed unusable, outmoded, or not worthy of upgrade in our 
current operating environment.    If approved, items will be donated or disposed of by March 1, 2022.  

Property 
Description 

Make Model Serial # Acquisition Cost Source Check 
No. 

HWIB 
ID# 

Condition Location Custodian Disposal 
Date 

COMPUTER Dell 
Optiple
x780 HOWRMN1 

11/01/10 $800.00 C1286 Fair CENTURY 
STORAGE 

Century 
Storage-
Sebring 

COMPUTER Dell 
Optiple
x780 HOVQMN1 

11/01/10 $800.00 C1282 Fair CENTURY 
STORAGE 

Century 
Storage-
Sebring 

COMPUTER Dell 
Optiple
x780 HOTSMN1 

11/01/10 $800.00 C1283 Fair CENTURY 
STORAGE 

Century 
Storage-
Sebring 

COMPUTER Dell 
Optiple
x780 HOWRMN1 

11/01/10 $800.00 C1286 Fair CENTURY 
STORAGE 

Century 
Storage-
Sebring 

COMPUTER Dell 
Optiple
x780 HOWQMN1 

11/01/10 $800.00 C1287 Fair CENTURY 
STORAGE 

Century 
Storage-
Sebring 

COMPUTER Dell 
Optiple
x780 HOTQMN1 

11/01/10 $800.00 C1288 Fair CENTURY 
STORAGE 

Century 
Storage-
Sebring 

COMPUTER Dell 
Optiple
x780 HOVRMN1 

11/01/10 $800.00 C1289 Fair CENTURY 
STORAGE 

Century 
Storage-
Sebring 

COMPUTER Dell 
Vostro 
200 BLH2CG1 

05/22/08 $412.00 
Rural 4869 

C1205 Fair CENTURY 
STORAGE 

Century 
Storage-
Sebring 

COMPUTER Dell 
Optiple
x 390 6WLHPS1 

06/11/12 $494.00 C1323 Fair CENTURY 
STORAGE 

Century 
Storage-
Sebring 



Donation or Disposal of Physical Asset Equipment 

COMPUTER Dell 
Optiple
x 390 6WHHPS1 

06/11/12 $494.00 C1324 Fair CENTURY 
STORAGE 

Century 
Storage-
Sebring 

COMPUTER Dell 
Optiple
x 390 6WNJPS1 

06/11/12 $494.00 C1321 Fair CENTURY 
STORAGE 

Century 
Storage-
Sebring 

MONITOR ACER 
 2015-16 C1427 Fair CENTURY 

STORAGE 

Century 
Storage-
Sebring 

MONITOR ACER 
 2015-16 C1429 Fair CENTURY 

STORAGE 

Century 
Storage-
Sebring 

MONITOR 
Acer 

 2015-2016 C1424 BAD CENTURY 
STORAGE 

Storage-
Sebring 
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President/CEO Report 
January 26, 2022 

 
 
Information Items: 

a. Sector Strategies:  Engaging Florida’s Heartland Region to Expand Economic Prosperity  
The last Sector Strategies roundtable was held on September 15, 2021 and reported to the Board 
at the October 2021 meeting.  The Sector Strategies employers requested that roundtables be 
held no more frequently than every 6 months.  The next session is planned for March 2022. 
 

b. Board vacancies/changes:   
Previous Member Reason for Leaving Seat  New Member 
Cauney Bamberg Employment Change Workforce- Community 

Based Organization 
TBD* 

MaryKay Burns  Retirement Private Business  Andrea 
Broomfield** 

Gary Ritter*  Employment 
Changed-Now  
Filling a Government-
Other seat 

Private Business Allen Moore** 

*Awaiting nomination(s) 
**Upon Executive Board approval 
 

c. Daniel “Mike” Davis is the new Coordinator of the Panther Youth Program (South Florida State 
College).  Since 2015 Mr. Davis has been the Okeechobee Project Specialist for the program.   
 

d. Infrastructure (IFA) Cost Sharing Agreements: All IFA agreements that required updates have 
been revised and signed. The IFA reconciliations for the periods of January 1, 2021 - June 30, 
2021, and July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2021, have been completed.  The IFA reconciliations for the 
period of July 1, 2021 - December 31, 2021, will be initiated once all financial data reporting 
through December 2021 has been completed. 
 

e. Concertium - The special project to review and update policies impacting CSH’s active directory 
and related network issues is almost complete.  To ensure compliance with procurement 
mandates, CSH is releasing an RFP for Informational Technology Services.  Staff will review 
ongoing costs and services delivered 
  

f. Taylor Hall Miller Parker PA completed the Administrative/Fiscal, Programmatic, and One-Stop 
monitoring.  The Department of Economic Opportunity has completed the Programmatic and 
One-stop monitoring; Administrative and Fiscal monitoring is still being conducted.   

 
g. CSH’s Indirect Cost Rate Proposal has been submitted to DEO for review and approval. The rate 

submitted is 18.6833%.  
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h. We continue to await the decision concerning our request for a waiver on the 50% Individual 
Training Account Expenditure requirement (20%). 

 
i. We continue to await feedback from the Hardee County Industrial Authority (IDA) concerning the 

process draft submitted regarding the possibility of CSH serving as the administrative and fiscal 
entity for job the IDA’s job training for local businesses. 

 
j. Recruiting efforts- Staff continues to contact self-registrants in Employ Florida to advise of 

services and jobs available.   We are seeing an increase in individuals seeking employment.    
 

k. CSF continues to approve new/updated policies. CSH staff continues to review current policies 
and procedures to ensure compliance.   

 
l. The grant CSH jointly applied for with CareerSources Research Coast and Polk was not awarded. 

(The CSF Get There Faster Grant intended to assist our area’s residents in overcoming the 
benefits cliff to become self-sufficient).  We will review other funding opportunities and submit 
applications as appropriate.  

 
m. We have not received notification concerning the grant application in partnership with 

CareerSource Flagler Volusia (CSFV). (The Ice House program - 8 foundational skills important to 
job retention as well as entrepreneurialism (Choice, Opportunity, Action, Knowledge, Wealth, 
Brand. Community, and Persistence).  

 
n. Legislation update – As of this writing, there had been no bills submitted to address issues related 

to HB 1507, the Reimagining Education and Career Help Act (REACH).   Many bills have been 
submitted that may impact Workforce.  We will watch carefully and keep you updated as session 
progresses.  

 
o. HB 1507- CSF has established a LWDB Letter Grades Working Group to assist with the 

development of criteria for issuing letter grades to LWDBs.  The Group met on December 2 and 
discussed potential pitfalls to avoid while crafting the system, potential consequences of a poorly 
crafted system, key features of a good grading system, and potential benefits of a good grading 
system.  Additional meetings are anticipated.  

 
The Credentials Review Committee (CRC) is moving forward also. Focus will include career 
pathways and stackable credentials.   An overview of the CRC’s activities and timeline is included 
with this report.   

 
p. The Governor’s budget included $100 million for workforce development capitalization incentive 

(intended to create and expand workforce education programs at Florida’s school districts and 
colleges) and $15 million for Apprenticeship expansion.   

 
q. Supported by CSF, a “Fiscal Cliff Dashboard” is being piloted by a few workforce boards in Florida. 

(ROI).  This dashboard is a career path planner and budgeting tool that shows how public 
assistance losses intersect with local in-demand career paths.   



Florida Credentials Review Committee 
Meeting and Main Activities Timeline 

Note: All dates are subject to change based on the dependencies of each action. 
Changes will be communicated to this committee in subsequent meetings or earlier. 

November 2021 

CRC Mtg 1 
Framework of Quality 

Workshop 1 
CRC Mtg 2 

Framework of Quality 
Workshop 2 

CRC Mtg 3 
Returned-Value 

Funding 
Workshop 

CRC Mtg 4 

Prior to 
Meeting 

SBE adopted 
CAPE lists as 

Master 
Credentials List 
(MCL) for 21-22

(08/18/2021) 

Labor Market Estimating 
Conference Meeting 1 

(10/06/2021) 

• Occupations requiring
HS to Associates 
analyzed 

• Wage brackets for
state, occupation, and 
region provided 

• Job opening
projections provided 

Send CRC 
feedback survey 

on middle- to 
high-level wage 
thresholds and 

credential 
sequencing wage 

threshold 

Labor Market 
Estimating 

Conference Meeting 
2 (TBD) 

• Analyze
occupations at all
education levels

• Analyze supply
and demand for
each occupation

Draft 
Framework 
of Quality 
based on 

CRC 
feedback 

Identify 
Returned-Value 

Funding data 
elements and 

sources  

Apply approved 
Framework of 

Quality to 
currently 
available 

credentials in 
Florida 

CRC Members 
appointed 

(08/26/2021) 

ESG continues 
analysis and begins 
to build a process 

framework for CRC 
to use when 
evaluating 
credentials 

Draft thresholds for 
evaluating demand 
and employment 

outcomes including 
local demand for 

Framework of Quality 

Draft process 
for 

submitting 
credentials 

for 
evaluation 

and inclusion 
on MCL 

Accept 
applications and 

evaluate new 
credentials for 

inclusion on MCL 

CRC Charter 
drafted 

ESG drafts criteria for 
evaluating credentials for 
sequencing and proposes 

middle- to high-level wage 
threshold for Framework of 

Quality 

Initiate employer 
engagement 

activities to include 
CRC members, 

industry/business 
groups, and other 

industry sector 
constituents  

Meeting 
Date Sept. 2021 Oct. 2021 Dec. 2021 Jan./Feb. 2022 Mar./Apr. 

2022 
Apr. 2022 June 2022 

 CRC 
Actions 

Approved CRC 
Charter 

LMEC provided overview of 
occupation analysis and 

preview of data expected in 
January 

Discuss potential 
wage thresholds to 
define middle- to 
high-level wages 

Review labor supply 
and demand analysis 

Consider 
approval of 
Framework 
of Quality 

Review elements 
of Returned-

Value Funding 
formula and data 

sources 

Consider 
approval of MCL 

for 2022-2023 

Scheduled 
Framework of 

Quality 
Workshop for 
CRC members 

(10/26/2021) 

ESG provided status update 
on Framework of Quality 
focusing on 2 of 4 factors: 

• Middle- to high-level
wages 

• Credential stacking 

Discuss criteria to 
evaluate for 
credential 

sequencing 

Review results from 
employer 

engagement 
activities  

Consider 
approval of 
process for 

adding 
credentials to 

MCL 

Submit 
approved MCL to 

CSF board for 
approval, then to 

SBE 

Review updated 
timeline for 
deliverables 

Review draft 
thresholds for 

evaluating demand 
and employment 

outcomes 

Consider new 
Returned-Value 
Funding formula 
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CareerSource Heartland Shines! 
 

CareerSource Heartland 
encourages feedback from our job 
seeker and employer customers …  

feedback that is critical to our 
success! 

 
For the past year, feedback through a brief online survey has been 
telling us that we are doing a great job … and that is GREAT NEWS! 

 
Below are just some of the comments received since our last board 
meeting that we are very proud to share!  
 

 
 
 
 

The service was beyond my expectations.  [Staff] was very informative and on the spot 
with her assistance.  ~ Samuel 

[Staff] fought for me to get a grant and it changed my life.  She is a great part of the 
program.  ~ Kirk 

Kind, Courteous, and Very Helpful.  The staff provides an excellent level of 
assistance/service for obtaining employment.  Professional and Efficient they do really 
care about the needs of their client's.  Highly recommended!  ~ Todd 

CareerSource is a very useful and resourceful center for people like me who need help 
with resumes, assistance with DEO claims, and just general information.  I was also put 
in contact with the SBDC, which I did not even know existed, and I have received a 
tremendous amount of support from them as well.  Thank you CareerSource staff.  ~ 
Wilina 

I would definitely refer [staff].  She has been very helpful with the process of helping us 
find the right candidate.  Has a great personality and patience to help me through the 
process.  I am amazed how simple [staff] made the process.  We will definitely be 
contacting [staff] for future hires.  ~ Florida Psychiatric Associates 

[Staff] is always willing to help me when I send her any request and even at the end of 
the day.  ~ Change of Pace 
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Programs Report 
July 2021 – December 2021 

 

WIOA  July-Dec 
Adult     Enrolled 53 
 Participating in Training   53 
 Career Services 0 
 Entered Employment                    21/20                95.2% 
 Average Wage at Placement $20.94 
      DeSoto and Hardee $20.51 
      Highlands $22.12 
      Okeechobee  $20.18 
   
Dislocated Worker            Enrolled 6 
 Participating in Training   6 
 Career Services 0 
 Entered Employment                       1/1             100.0%                                             
 Average Wage at Placement   $20.00 
      DeSoto and Hardee $0.00 
      Highlands $20.00 
      Okeechobee $0.00 
   
Out-of-School Youth  Enrolled 65 
 Participating in Training   65 
 Positive Outcome Rate*                   0/0 0.0% 
   
In-School Youth  Enrolled 45 
 Positive Outcome Rate                    1/1 100.0% 
   
Wagner Peyser   
Employer Services Total Employers Served 530 
 Individual Employer Services 6,814 
 Job Placement Wage Rate $12.10 
 Entered Employment Rate 29.8% 
   
Job Seeker Services Individuals Receiving Services 2,533 
 Services Provided Individuals 15,590 

 

*Out-of-School Youth had no outcomes to report during the reporting period.   
 Data is posted as draft – results subject to change. 
 

 
 Reported Unemployment Rate by County/State for November 2021 (not seasonally adjusted) 

    DeSoto 3.3%        Hardee 4.2%        Highlands 4.9%        Okeechobee 3.8%        Florida 3.6% 



 

PROGRAMS REPORT II:  NARRATIVE 
 

 

INITIATIVES 

TOBACCO FREE FLORIDA 
CareerSource Heartland continues to participate in the statewide initiative to make Florida tobacco free.  Sponsored by the 
Florida Workforce Development Association and the Bureau of Tobacco Free Florida, CareerSource Heartland staff provides 
onsite referrals to phone, online, or in-person cessation services that help job seekers quit tobacco and improve 
employability.  The free referral program offers incentive funding to workforce agencies to promote the program.  For this 
program year, CareerSource Heartland earned $1,875.00 in incentive funding.  
 
WIOA NATIONAL DISLOCATED WORKER GRANT (NDWG) 
The NDWG grant received to provide temporary jobs to assist with humanitarian aid, clean up and restoration activities due 
to COVID-19, continues to progress successfully.  To date, we have placed seven temporary workers in disaster-related 
positions throughout our local service area. Eligible participants must be temporarily or permanently laid off due to COVID-
19; be self-employed and became unemployed or significantly underemployed, because of COVID-19; or unemployed six 
out of the past 13 weeks; or meet other eligible dislocated worker criteria.  Of the seven temporary workers placed, six 
found permanent unsubsidized employment, and the remaining worker continues to work in their temporary disaster-
related position. 

CAREER SOURCE HEARTLAND CENTERS HIGHLIGHTS 
From October 2021 – December 2021, Business Operations and Career Center staff: 

 Facilitated five onsite and six offsite hiring events for local employers.   
 Facilitated the annual Paychecks for Patriots Job Fair with eight employers participating and 30 jobseekers in 

attendance. 
 Veteran staff and supervisory staff attended a three-day Veteran’s Statewide Training held in Orlando.  
 Assisted customers with navigating Reemployment Assistance (RA) applications, answering RA questions, and PIN 

resets.  
 Continued initiative to address customers who are registered in Employ Florida to determine if they have found 

employment and if not, make them aware of the services we can provide virtually or in-person in our career 
centers. 
 

MIGRANT SEASONAL FARM WORKER SERVICES 
For the quarter, there were an estimated 550 MSFWs in the outreach area.  MSFW Outreach staff maintained close 
communications with crew leaders and agricultural employers to reach MSFWs, in person, by phone, and/or email to assist 
with job referrals and other needed services.   It should be noted that H2A job orders continued to be posted daily with an 
increased number of visa workers recruited to fill the gap in temporary or seasonal work.  
 
YOUTH SERVICES  
Youth provider staff continued to assist Youth participants in person, virtually, by telephone, and email. 
  

 Out-of-School Youth – Continue to work diligently with local businesses to partner in support of Work Experience 
and Job Shadowing opportunities.  Youth focus on workforce preparation activities that include, but not limited to: 
GED preparation, soft skills training, financial literacy education, and vocational skills training. Out-of-School Youth 
are served by both CareerSource Heartland staff and SFSC’s Panther Youth Partners Program. 

 In-School Youth - Focusing on high school graduation, soft skills, and career awareness to prepare them for the 
workforce or post-secondary educational opportunities. 
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Independent Accountants’ Report 


On Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures 


 


 


 


To the Board of Directors and Management of CareerSource Heartland: 


 


We have performed the procedures enumerated below in the attached sections on the fiscal and 


programmatic records of CareerSource Heartland (CareerSource) as of October 21, 2021, for the program 


year ending June 30, 2022. CareerSource’s management is responsible for the fiscal and programmatic 


records.  


 


CareerSource has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate to meet the 


intended purpose of conducting fiscal and programmatic monitoring. This report may not be suitable for any 


other purpose. The procedures performed may not address all the items of interest to a user of this report and 


may not meet the needs of all users of this report and, as such, users are responsible for determining whether 


the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes. 


 


For reporting purposes, findings and observations are as follows: 


 


Findings—These items reflect non-compliance with governing regulations, internal policies, or contractual 


requirements and may illustrate questionable costs and/or problematic deficiencies in internal controls. 


These items can also indicate ineffective or improper procedures, systems, and/or records maintenance. 


 


Observations—These items may be proactive in nature and highlight specific situations where particular 


changes may enhance customer service and program outcomes, strengthen internal controls, or improve 


financial information and documentation. 


 


 


The procedures and associated findings and observations are detailed in the following sections: 


 


I. CareerSource 


II. One-Stop Operator 


III. WIOA Adult/Dislocated Worker 


IV. WIOA Youth 


V. Wagner-Peyser 


VI. Welfare Transition Program 


VII. Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) 
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We were engaged by CareerSource to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and conducted our 


engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public 


Accountants. We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review engagement, the 


objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on the fiscal and 


programmatic records of CareerSource. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had 


we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been 


reported to you. 


 


We are required to be independent of CareerSource and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 


accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon procedures engagement. 


 


 


 


October 28, 2021 
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I. CareerSource 


 


Procurement Review 


 


1. We randomly selected the WIOA In-School Youth Services contract renewal for the Program Year 


21-22, obtained the procurement and contract files, and inspected the contract and/or procurement 


files to determine whether proper procedures were followed and were properly documented, using 


DEO’s 2021-2022 Financial Monitoring Tool. 


 


There were no findings identified as a result of applying the procedures above to the sample selected. 


 


 Observations: 


 


As a result of applying the procedures to the sample selected, we observed the following that should 


be addressed to improve the procurement process: 


 


1.  The contract does not contain the following required contract elements, provisions, clauses, 


and/or assurances related to the 2 CFR 200 updates: 


 


• EO 13798 Promoting Free Speech and Religious Liberty and EO 13864 Improving Free 


Inquiry, Transparency, and Accountability at Colleges and Universities 


• Assistance Listing Number (replaces CFDA #) 


• Domestic Preferences for Procurements 


• Prohibition on Certain Telecommunications and Video Surveillance 


   


Recommendation: 


 


The missing elements, provisions, clauses, and/or assurances should be added to this 


contract and/or to the boilerplate subrecipient contract language.  


 


Response:  An amendment has been completed adding the missing elements to the contract. 


In addition, the required elements, provisions, clauses, and/or assurances will be included in 


the boilerplate language for all subrecipient contracts. 


 


Subrecipient Audit Review 


 


1. We inspected the following audit report submitted by CareerSource’s subrecipient: 


 


• South Florida State College – June 30, 2020 


 


There were no findings or observations identified as a result of applying the procedures above to the 


sample selected. 


 


 


Subrecipient Risk Assessment 
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1. We obtained a list of subrecipients for the program year ending June 30, 2022 and determined that a 


risk assessment was completed for each subrecipient by CareerSource staff. 


  


• South Florida State College 


There were no findings or observations identified as a result of applying the procedures to the sample 


selected. 


 


 


Financial Review 


 


1. We randomly selected the operating account bank statement and reconciliation for the month ended 


August 31, 2021, and performed the following: 


 


a. Confirmed whether the bank account was reconciled and reviewed in a timely manner. 


 


b. Traced the reconciled bank balance to the general ledger. 


 


c. Mathematically checked the clerical accuracy of the reconciliation. 


 


d. Compared the bank balance listed on the reconciliation to the bank statement. 


 


e. Traced a random sample of payroll transfers to supporting documentation. 


 


f. For a random sample of the cleared check images included with the bank statement agreed 


the payee, check date and amount per the cancelled check image to the check register. 


 


g. For the list of outstanding checks, traced the check number and amount to the check register. 


 


h. Accounted for the sequence of checks listed in the check register for August by tracing the 


check number to the bank statement or the list of outstanding checks, or by examining the 


voided check. 


 


i. Inquired about any large or unusual outstanding checks that were outstanding for a period of 


time. 


 


j. Completed the section of the DEO monitoring tool related to cash management. 


 


There were no findings or observations identified as a result of applying the procedures above to the 


sample selected. 


 


2. We randomly selected the Paychex payroll register for the payroll pay period ended August 31, 2021 


(pay date 8/31/2021), and, for a random sample of eight employees, determined whether: 


 


a. check/direct deposit data agreed to payroll register; 


 


b. gross pay recalculated and deductions appeared reasonable; 
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c. leave was properly tracked and approved, and days of leave agreed to the August 2021 


Personnel Activity Reports (PARs); 


 


d. the pay rate for the employee was authorized; 


 


e. payroll allocation percentages recalculated and traced to supporting PARs; 


 


f. payroll cost allocations recalculated and traced to supporting documentation; 


 


g. costs were properly allocated and classified; and 


 


h. costs traced to general ledger postings. 


 


3. For the pay period selected, we traced the Paychex payroll amounts to the ACH payroll transfers. 


 


4. For the random sample of employees selected, we determined whether employee positions and 


salary information for each position were posted on CareerSource’s website in a manner easily 


accessible to the public in accordance with the Board Governance, Responsibilities, and 


Transparency requirements in the DEO Grantee Subgrantee Agreement. 


 


There were no findings or observations identified as a result of applying the procedures above to the 


sample selected. 


 


5. We randomly selected the Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Florida (ck# 16919) employee insurance 


payment for the month of September 2021 and determined whether check data agreed to invoice, 


the check was properly signed and cleared the bank, the invoice was supported by proper 


documentation and allocation for the random sample of employees selected above, and costs traced 


to general ledger postings. 


 


There were no findings or observations identified as a result of applying the procedures above to the 


sample selected. 


 


6. We selected a random sample of six small purchases (less than $250,000 per local policy) from the 


period ended September 30, 2021, and four credit card charges (VISA Business Card) from the 


statement closing date August 2, 2021, reviewed current policies and procedures, and determined 


whether: 


 


a. check data agreed to invoice(s); 


 


b. the check contained an authorized signature and cleared the bank; 


 


c. the disbursement was supported by proper documentation and approval; 


 


d. purchasing and travel procedures were followed, and a cost or price analysis was performed, 


if applicable; 


 


e. the cost was allowable, reasonable, and necessary; 
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f. the cost was properly charged (i.e., benefiting program or cost pool) and classified; 


 


g. payment traced to general ledger posting; 


 


h. prior approval procedures were followed in accordance with DEO guidance; 


 


i. the cost was properly capitalized, if applicable; and 


 


j. contracts in excess of $35,000 were posted on CareerSource’s website in accordance with 


the DEO agreement. 


 


There were no findings identified as a result of applying the procedures above to the sample selected. 


 


Observations: 


 


As a result of applying the procedures to the sample selected, we observed the following that should 


be addressed to improve financial information and documentation: 


 


1. For the agreements with Concertium, sole source procurement documentation maintained 


did not clearly bridge the details between the original IT assessment services to the partially 


managed services, and then expanding the contract to include fully managed services. 


 


Recommendation: 


 


CareerSource should review the procurement documentation maintained and ensure the 


procurement process and results were adequately detailed and supported. 


 


Response:  Documentation has been prepared to more clearly bridge the details and outline 


procurement efforts for the Concertium contracts. 


 


7. We randomly selected the August 2021 cost allocation and indirect cost recovery schedules and 


performed the following: 


 


a. We obtained and inspected CareerSource’s Cost Allocation Plan (CAP) and performed the 


following for the month-end cost pool allocations (Center General Expenses, Center Leases, 


Center Payrolls & Fringe): 


 


1. Determined whether the method of allocation agreed with the approved cost 


allocation plan. 


 


2. Traced allocation bases to supporting documentation/schedules. 


 


3. Traced allocable cost data to supporting documentation and general ledger. 


 


4. Recalculated allocation base percentages and cost pool allocations. 


 







7 


 


5. Traced cost pool allocations to the general ledger. 


 


b. We obtained and inspected CareerSource’s approved indirect cost rate and Indirect Cost 


Rate Plan (ICRP) and, for the Application of Rate to Recover Indirect Costs worksheet, 


determined whether: 


 


1. direct costs and exclusions traced to the general ledger and supporting schedules, 


when applicable; 


 


2. modified total direct costs (MTDC) were correctly calculated by fund; 


 


3. indirect cost recovery was correctly calculated by fund and between admin and 


program; and 


 


4. indirect costs were properly posted in the general ledger by grant. 


 


There were no findings or observations identified as a result of applying the procedures above to the 


month selected. 


 


8. We randomly selected the SERA cash draw worksheet for the September 15, 2021, cash order and 


determined whether the request for funds was supported by documentation of the anticipated 


expenditures. 


 


There were no findings or observations identified as a result of applying the procedures above to the 


cash order selected. 


 


9. We randomly selected the 2020 WIOA Dislocated Worker (NFA ID# 39230), 2020 WIOA Youth (NFA 


ID# 39073), 2021 Wagner-Peyser (NFA ID# 40442), and 2020 SNAP (NFA ID# 39481) grants, 


obtained the Financial Report Summary (FRS) for each grant for the most recent month reported to 


DEO (September 2021), and performed the following: 


 


a. Confirmed the mathematical accuracy. 


 


b. Traced SERA year-to-date expenditures and current obligations to supporting schedules and 


the general ledger. 


 


c. Determined whether costs were properly reported among the SERA cost categories. 


 


d. Determined whether administrative costs were limited to the appropriate guidelines. 


 


There were no findings or observations identified as a result of applying the procedures above to the 


sample selected. 


 


 


Customer-Related Expenditures 
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1. We randomly selected Sunshine Staffing NDWG Temporary Labor payroll invoice #1005657 (PPE 


8/1/2021) and invoice #1005878 (PPE 9/19/2021) and performed the following: 


 


a.  Confirmed the mathematical accuracy. 


 


b.  Determined whether an agreement/contract existed and the rate paid was substantiated. 


 


c.  For the customers listed on the invoice: 


 


1. Traced hours paid to the supporting timesheet. 


 


2. Determined whether the timesheet was properly signed and approved. 


 


3. Verified that the pay rate was approved. 


 


4. Determined whether the fees recalculated. 


 


5. Determined whether a signed worksite agreement existed for the worksite listed on the 


timesheet. 


 


6. Verified that the customer was enrolled in the appropriate State system with an 


appropriate activity open. 


 


7. Determined whether the rate paid to Sunshine Staffing agreed with the contract. 


 


d.  Determined whether costs traced to the general ledger and were properly classified. 


 


There were no findings or observations identified as a result of applying the procedures above to the 


sample selected. 


 


2. We selected a random sample of nine training and training-related payments from the period ended 


October 1, 2021, obtained the supporting documentation for each disbursement, and determined 


whether: 


 


a. the check agreed to supporting documentation; 


 


b. the check contained an authorized signature and cleared the bank; 


 


c. the disbursement was supported by proper documentation and approval; 


 


d. the cost was allowable, reasonable, and necessary; 


 


e. the cost was properly allocated and classified; 


 


f. the payment traced to the ITA tracking system and CareerSource’s general ledger; 
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g. the customer was registered in the appropriate State system and the service was properly 


documented; 


 


h. the training vendor appeared on the approved training vendor list, a signed agreement with 


the training vendor exists, and the cost was incurred for a demand occupation, if applicable; 


and 


 


i. the approved training budget was properly recorded in the ITA tracking system, if applicable. 


There were no findings or observations identified as a result of applying the procedures 


above to the sample selected. 


 


 


Support Service Cards 


 


1. Through inquiry of CareerSource staff, we obtained an understanding of the current supportive 


service gas cards purchasing, issuance, tracking and reconciliation processes utilized. 


 


2. We randomly selected a sample of 12 WTP customers who received card loads for supportive 


services from the issuance logs for August – September 2021 and vouched the card load to OSST 


to determine if the service and amount were properly documented. 


 


There were no findings or observations identified as a result of applying the procedures above to the 


sample selected. 
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II. One-Stop Operator 


 


1. We randomly selected the June and September 2021 One-Stop Operator quarterly reports, inspected 


the reports, and interviewed staff to determine if they, at a minimum, addressed the following: 


 


a. Compliance with disclosure of any potential conflicts of interest arising from the relationship 


of CareerSource as the One-Stop Operator with particular training service providers or other 


service providers 


 


b. Compliance with Federal regulation and procurement policies 


 


c. Oversight of the coordination of service delivery among the required One-Stop partners and 


service providers, including assurance that practices are in place to encourage services to 


individuals with barriers to employment 


 


d. Provision of quarterly reports indicating how the One-Stop operation was evaluated to 


determine compliance including any necessary actions, recommendations or suggestions for 


improvement 


 


e. Development of Memorandums of Understanding (MOUs) and Infrastructure Funding 


Agreements (IFAs) with One-Stop Partners 


 


2. We randomly selected the AARP Foundation SCSEP and South Florida State College – Adult Ed 


MOU/IFA agreements from the list of required One-Stop partners and inspected the agreement to 


determine if the following key elements required by TEGLs 16-16 and 17-16 were included in the 


applicable document: 


 


• Description of services 


• One-Stop Operating budget 


• Access 


• Referral 


• Duration 


• Modification process 


• Signatories of Chief Elected Official, Local Board Director, and Partner  


• Identification of all One-Stop Partners participating in the IFA 


• A description of the periodic modification and review process for the IFA 


 


3. We determined if the IFA reconciliation process was performed for all required partners for the period 


ended June 30, 2021. 


 


There were no findings or observations identified as a result of applying the procedures above to 


the sample selected.  
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III. WIOA Adult/Dislocated Worker 


 


File/System Review 


 


1. We selected a random sample of six WIOA Adult and Dislocated Worker customers from enrollments 


in Employ Florida (EF) PY20-21 and PY21-22 and inspected customer files and EF for evidence of 


eligibility and program documentation, using information on DEO’s 2020-2021 WIOA Adult/DW 


Programmatic Review Tool. 


 


There were no findings or observations identified as a result of applying the procedures above to the 


sample selected. 


 


2. We selected a random sample of two NDWG-COVID19 customers from enrollments in EF during 


PY20-21 and PY21-22 and inspected customer files and EF for evidence of eligibility and program 


documentation, using information on DEO’s 2020-2021 NDWG Programmatic Review Tool. 


 


There were no findings or observations identified as a result of applying the procedures above to the 


sample selected. 


 


3. We selected a random sample of three WIOA Adult and Dislocated Worker customers who exited the 


program within the last 12 months and inspected customer files and EF for evidence of proper case 


closure and follow-up using information on DEO’s 2020-2021 WIOA Adult/DW Programmatic Review 


Tool. 


 


There were no findings or observations identified as a result of applying the procedures above to the 


sample selected. 
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IV. WIOA Youth 


 


Financial Review 


 


1. We obtained a list of subrecipients for PY 2021-2022 and, based on this list, randomly selected the 


July 2021 payment request submitted by South Florida State College (SFSC) for the WIOA Out-of-


School Youth program and performed the following: 


 


a. Confirmed the mathematical accuracy. 


 


b. Traced line-item costs to the subrecipient's general ledger. 


 


c. For payroll disbursements, obtained the supporting detail by employee salary and related 


benefits to determine whether the costs were allowable and properly allocated, and whether 


payroll allocation percentages recalculated and traced to supporting documentation and 


PARs (Personnel Activity Reports). 


 


d. For operating disbursements, determined whether the vendor invoice was present and 


contained the appropriate approval, and costs were properly allocated and classified. 


 


e. For customer training, support service and incentive payments, determined whether: 


 


1. documentation was submitted to support the expenditure, 


 


2. the customer was registered in Employ Florida as an Out-of-School Youth, and 


 


3. Employ Florida contains the appropriate activity and/or attainment. 


 


f. Determined whether indirect costs were properly billed. 


 


g. Determined whether the subrecipient adhered to the line-item contract budget. 


 


h. Determined whether the performance holdback was computed as specified in the contract. 


 


i. Traced the payment request to CareerSource’s general ledger. 


 


j. Determined whether the contract was posted on CareerSource’s website. 


 


There were no findings or observations identified as a result of applying the procedures above to the 


invoice selected. 
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File/System Review 


 


1. We selected a random sample of five WIOA Youth customers served by SFSC from enrollments in 


Employ Florida (EF) during PY20-21 and PY21-22 and inspected customer files and EF for evidence 


of eligibility and program documentation, using information on DEO’s 2020-2021 WIOA Youth 


Programmatic Review Tool. 


 


There were no findings or observations identified as a result of applying the procedures above to the 


sample selected. 


 


2. We selected a random sample of two SFSC WIOA Youth customers who exited the program within 


the last 12 months and inspected customer files and EF for evidence of proper case closure and 


follow-up, using information on DEO’s 2020-2021 WIOA Youth Programmatic Review Tool. 


 


There were no findings or observations identified as a result of applying the procedures above to the 


sample selected. 
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V. Wagner-Peyser 


 


Services Review 


 


1. We selected a random sample of 15 Wagner-Peyser customers from Employ Florida (EF) and 


inspected documentation in EF for the period July 1, 2021, through October 18, 2021, to determine 


whether proper procedures were followed and the services provided were properly documented, 


using DEO’s 2020-2021 Wagner-Peyser Programmatic Review Tool. 


 


Findings: 


 


There were no findings identified as a result of applying the procedures above to the sample selected, 


except for: 


 


1. For the following customer, service code 205 was recorded in Employ Florida to document 


the development of an EDP plan; however, this plan was not developed: 


 


Customer EF ID# 


D.C. 11861909 


 


Recommendation: 


   


During fieldwork the service was deleted. No further corrective action is necessary. 


 


Response:  Program staff has been reminded that when developing the EDP plan in Employ Florida 


(EF), the EF system will automatically enter the 205 codes for them.  A review was completed of all 


service code 205s entered during the program year, to ensure proper procedures were followed. All 


other 205 codes entered did have a corresponding EDP Plan on file, as required. 


 


Job Order Review 


 


1. We selected a random sample of 10 Wagner-Peyser job orders with open dates of July 1, 2021, or 


subsequent and inspected the job orders documented in Employ Florida, using information on DEO’s 


2020-2021 Wagner-Peyser Programmatic Review Tool to determine whether proper procedures 


were followed. 


 


There were no findings or observations identified as a result of applying the procedures above to the 


sample selected. 


 


 


Migrant/Seasonal Farmworker (MSFW) Services Review 


 


1. We selected a random sample of four MSFWs who received “Quality” contacts per the August and 


September 2021 Logs of Daily Outreach Activities and inspected the information documented in 


Employ Florida, using information on DEO’s 2020-2021 MSFW Programmatic Review Tool to 


determine whether proper procedures were followed.  







15 


 


 


There were no findings or observations identified as a result of applying the procedures above to the 


sample selected. 
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VI. Welfare Transition Program 


 


File/System Review 


 


1. We selected a random sample of 10 cases that were active in the Welfare Transition Program (WTP) 


during the period July 1, 2021, through October 21, 2021, and utilized information on the 2020-2021 


WTP Monitoring Tool developed by DEO to inspect the State system (OSST) and case files for 


evidence of compliance. 


 


Findings: 


 


1. As a result of applying the procedures to the sample selected, we confirmed that cases were 


processed in compliance with Welfare Transition Program requirements, except for the 


following: 


 


Activities 


• The CSWE assignment instructed participant M.T. (OSST ID# 2071097) to complete 


more hours than the maximum allowed per the monthly benefit calculation. 


 


Recommendation: 


 


Specific details related to the finding are noted by case on the THMP monitoring work papers 


provided to CareerSource. CareerSource should review the comments and make corrections 


to the case where possible. In the future, case managers, supervisors and management 


should take action to ensure that cases are properly processed. 


 


Response: This miscalculation was due to staff error. The hours were corrected in OSST to 


align with benefit amounts. Program staff were reminded to take appropriate action to ensure 


that cases are properly processed.  


 


Observations: 


 


1. As a result of applying the procedures to the sample selected, we observed the following 


issues that should be addressed to improve case management, case file documentation and 


system information: 


 


IRPs 


• Steps to self-sufficiency on IRPs in the case file for participant M.T. (OSST ID# 2071097) 


did not contain an activity assignment end date. 


• The signed IRP in the case file for participant D.W. (OSST ID# 914126) contained steps 


to self-sufficiency that were not appropriately updated. 


 


Employment 


• A 30-day follow-up was missing from the OSST Employment Details screen for 


participant J.W. (OSST ID# 1372005). 
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Case Management 


• Case notes did not provide a clear picture of what was happening with the case for 


participant D.W. (OSST ID# 914126). 


• Case notes for participant A.S. (OSST ID# 1484393) contained incorrect information. 


Pre-penalties and Sanctions 


• An incorrect pre-penalty termination date was entered in OSST for participant J.L. (OSST 


ID# 3621889). Upon demonstrated compliance, the pre-penalty should have been 


terminated with the date that the participant agreed to comply. 


• An incorrect sanction level was requested for participant D.W. (OSST ID# 914126). 


 


Recommendation: 


 


Specific details related to the observations are noted by case on the THMP monitoring work 


papers provided to CareerSource. In an effort to promote continuous improvement, case 


managers, supervisors and management should review the above comments, as well as 


work papers provided to CareerSource, and take action to improve WTP case management, 


file documentation, and system information. 


 


Response:  THMP monitoring work papers have been reviewed and corrections made where 


possible. Guidance was provided to program staff on issues identified. Staff conducting 


Quality Assurance reviews will focus on these issues to assure program compliance.  


 


2. We selected a random sample of five cases that were listed as transitional in the Welfare Transition 


Program during the period July 1, 2021, through October 21, 2021, and utilized information on the 


2020-2021 WTP Monitoring Tool developed by DEO to inspect case files and determine whether 


participants were eligible for the transitional services provided and cases were properly processed. 


 


There were no findings or observations identified as a result of applying the procedures above to the 


sample selected.  
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VII. Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) 


 


File/System Review 


 


1. We inspected a random sample of four cases that were active in the Supplemental Nutrition 


Assistance Program (SNAP) during the period July 1, 2021, through October 20, 2021, and utilized 


the SNAP local operating procedures, the SNAP Florida State Plan for Federal Fiscal Year 2020, and 


the 2020-2021 SNAP Monitoring Tool developed by DEO to inspect the State system (OSST) and 


case files for evidence of compliance. 


 


There were no findings identified as a result of applying the procedures above to the sample selected. 


 


Observations: 


 


1. As a result of applying the procedures to the sample selected, we observed the following that 


should be addressed to improve case management, case file documentation and system 


information: 


 


Case Management 


• Incorrect or inappropriate information was documented in case notes for participant J.P. 


(OSST ID# 3209973). 


• Case notes did not provide a clear picture of what was happening with the case for 


participant J.H. (OSST ID# 4765547). 


   


Recommendation: 


 


Specific details related to the observations are noted by case on the THMP monitoring work 


papers provided to CareerSource. In an effort to promote continuous improvement, case 


managers, supervisors and management should review the above comments, as well as 


work papers provided to CareerSource, and take action to improve SNAP case management 


and system information. 


 


Response:  THMP monitoring work papers and the issues with case notes have been reviewed 


with program staff. To promote continuous improvement, staff providing Quality Assurance 


will focus on how to properly document in case notes to ensure that information is appropriate 


and provides a clear picture of what is happening within the case. 


 


 


CareerSource Heartland would like to thank THMP staff for their efforts in assisting us in the 


continuous improvement of our organization, to the customers we serve, and the programs 


and services we provide. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 


To the Board of Directors, 
Heartland Workforce Investment Board, Inc. 


dba: CareerSource Heartland 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 


We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Heartland Workforce Investment Board, Inc., 
dba: CareerSource Heartland (the Organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of 
June 30, 2021, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year 
then ended,  and the related notes to the financial statements.  


Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 


The Organization’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; 
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. 


Auditors’ Responsibility 


Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 


An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 


We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 
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Opinion 


In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Organization as of June 30, 2021, and the results of its operations and its cash 
flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 


Other Matters 


Other Information – Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 


Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. 
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis as required by the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 
(Uniform Guidance) and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used 
to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In 
our opinion, the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the financial statements as a whole.  


Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 


In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 4, 
2021, on our consideration of the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization’s internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance. 


Daytona Beach, Florida 


October 4, 2021 


 







HEARTLAND WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD, INC.
DBA: CAREERSOURCE HEARTLAND


STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 2021


Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 323,594$       
Grants and accounts receivable 15,943
Prepaid expenses 33,666


Total current assets 373,203         


Noncurrent assets
Fixed assets


Computer equipment and furniture 26,187
Accumulated depreciation (24,743)


Net fixed assets 1,444


Refundable deposits 23,901
Total noncurrent assets 25,345           


Total Assets 398,548$       


Current liabilities
Accounts payable 219,554$       
Accrued expenses 72,833
Deferred revenue 123,232


Total current liabilities 415,619         


Net assets
Without donor restrictions:


Undesignated (17,071)          


Total Liabilities and Net Assets 398,548$       


ASSETS


LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS


The accompanying notes to the financial statements
are an integral part of this statement.
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HEARTLAND WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD, INC.
DBA: CAREERSOURCE HEARTLAND


STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021


Support and Revenue
Grants:


Federal 3,662,652$    
Local 11,210           


Interest 619
Other revenue 1,725


Total support and revenue 3,676,206      


Expenses
Program services 3,394,947
Administration 273,672         


Total expenses 3,668,619      


Change in net assets without donor restrictions 7,587             


Net assets without donor restrictions, beginning of year (24,658)          


Net assets without donor restrictions, end of year (17,071)$        


The accompanying notes to the financial statements 
are an integral part of this statement.
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Workforce General and
Development Administrative Total


Salaries and wages 1,289,878$        160,351$           1,450,229$        
Grants to organizations 673,966 -                    673,966             
Other employee benefits 340,730 28,110 368,840             
Occupancy 295,484 8,361 303,845             
Grants to individuals 288,585 -                    288,585             
Information technology 105,840 6,527 112,367             
Payroll taxes 97,239 12,076 109,315             
Office expense 74,768 4,919 79,687               
Travel 13,145 77 13,222               
Other service fees 40,216 18,867 59,083               
Staff development and background screenings 11,991 1,870 13,861               
Accounting services -                    23,800 23,800               
Retirement 30,990 2,848 33,838               
Insurance 16,535 2,621 19,156               
Transportation and support services 17,097 -                    17,097               
Dues and subscriptions 1,190 1,385 2,575                 
Advertising and promotion 97,293 576 97,869               
Depreciation -                    1,284 1,284                 


Total Expenses 3,394,947$        273,672$           3,668,619$        


HEARTLAND WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD, INC.


STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021


DBA: CAREERSOURCE HEARTLAND


The accompanying notes to the financial statements 
are an integral part of this statement.
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HEARTLAND WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD, INC.
DBA: CAREERSOURCE HEARTLAND


STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021


 
Cash flows from operating activities


Change in net assets 7,587$        


Depreciation 1,284          
Increase (decrease) in assets:


Grants and accounts receivable 45,802        
Prepaid expenses 30,418        


(Increase) decrease in liabilities:
Accounts payable 73,112        
Accrued expenses 19               
Deferred revenue (191,351)     


Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (33,129)       


Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (33,129)       


Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 356,723      


Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 323,594$    


Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided 
by (used in) operating activities:


The accompanying notes to the financial statements 
are an integral part of this statement.
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HEARTLAND WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD, INC. 


DBA: CAREERSOURCE HEARTLAND 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


JUNE 30, 2021 
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: 


The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies of the Organization, which affect 


significant elements of the financial statements: 


(a) Reporting entity—The Organization is a nonprofit organization under the state of Florida 


Not-for-Profit Corporation Act and is exempt from income taxes according to the provisions of 


Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC). In addition, the Organization qualifies for the 


charitable contribution deduction and has been classified as an organization that is not a private 


foundation.  


The Governor of Florida has designated the four county area of DeSoto, Hardee, Highlands, and 


Okeechobee as a Local Workforce Development Area (LWDA) for the purpose of serving as a 


jurisdiction for the administration of workforce development activities designed to increase 


individual’s employment and earning potential, such as job-search and placement assistance, career 


information, training and other job preparation efforts, and the execution of Workforce Innovation 


and Opportunity Act (WIOA) adult, dislocated worker, and youth funds. This designation resulted in 


the Boards of County Commissioners (BOCC) of the four counties entering into an inter-local 


agreement to establish a multi-jurisdictional arrangement for the purpose of obtaining grant recipient 


and subgrant recipient designation. The agreement is administered through the Heartland Workforce 


Investment Consortium (Consortium), which designates a County Commissioner representative for 


each BOCC. The four commissioners comprise the Organization’s Executive Board.  


The Consortium’s inter-local agreement provides for the appointment of the board members of the 


Local Workforce Development Board as required under laws enacted by federal and state legislators. 


It also allows for the Consortium’s Executive Board to provide oversight of the Organization’s board 


of directors and the organization’s programs and operations. 


The state of Florida is a recipient of several federal grant programs through the United States 


Departments of Labor, Agriculture, and Health and Human Services. As authorized by the state of 


Florida, the Consortium’s Executive Board has designated the Organization as the subrecipient for 


these grant programs within LWDA 19.  


The primary objective of these programs is to establish methods to prepare youth and unskilled 


adults for entry into the labor force, to afford job training to economically disadvantage individuals 


and to those facing serious barriers to employment, all done to assist them in reaching self-


sufficiency. Workforce development support and skills enhancement training is also provided to 


employed workers, through a business-focused and demand-driven approach, to enhance the 


productivity and retention capability of local businesses. Another objective is to provide for 


programs that allow individuals to move from welfare to work. To assist in the accomplishment of 


these purposes, the Organization contracts with various organizations which provide educational and 


training services. 







HEARTLAND WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD, INC. 


DBA: CAREERSOURCE HEARTLAND 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


JUNE 30, 2021 
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:  (Continued) 


The Organization develops, plans, monitors, and administrates the following grants and programs: 


• Local Veterans’ Outreach Program 


• Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program 


• Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 


• Wagner Peyser 


• Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act – Adult, Youth, and Dislocated Worker 


(b) Basis of accounting—The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the 


accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the generally accepted in the United States of 


America.  


(c) Basis of financial statement presentation and accounting for contributions—The 


accompanying financial statements include all funds and activities over which the board of directors 


of the Organization has oversight and financial responsibility. 


The Organization prepares its financial statements in accordance to the Financial Accounting 


Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 958, Not-for-Profit Entities.  


(d) Net assets—Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or 


absence of donor or grantor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are 


classified and reported as follows: 


Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions – Net assets available for use in general operations and 


not subject to donor (or certain grantor) restrictions  


Net assets with donor restrictions—Net assets subject to donor- (or certain grantor-) imposed 
restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will 
be met by the passage of time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed 
restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in 
perpetuity. The organization report contributions restricted by donors as increases in net assets 
without donor restrictions if the restrictions expire (that is, when a stipulated time restriction 
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished) in the reporting period in which the revenue is 
recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with 
donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, net 
assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and 
reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions. There are no net 
assets with donor restrictions as of June 30, 2021. 


The organization recognizes contributions when cash, securities or other assets, an 
unconditional promise to give, or a notification of a beneficial interest is received. Conditional 
promises to give, that is, those with a measurable performance or other barrier, and a right of 
return, are not recognized until the conditions on which they depend have been substantially 
met. 







HEARTLAND WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD, INC. 


DBA: CAREERSOURCE HEARTLAND 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


JUNE 30, 2021 
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:  (Continued) 


A significant portion of its revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable federal, state, and local 
contracts and grants, which are conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/ or the 
incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue 
when the organization has incurred expenditures in compliance with specific contract or grant 
provisions. Amounts received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures are reported as 
refundable advances in the statement of financial position. At June 30, 2021, $123,232 have 
been received in advance and/or have not been recognized because qualifying expenditures 
have not yet been incurred under the organization’s federal, state, and local contracts and 
grants.  


(e) Use of estimates—The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting 


principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 


estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 


contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of 


revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.  


(f) Fixed assets and depreciation—Fixed Assets are defined by the Board as assets with an 


initial, individual cost of $5,000 or more and an estimated useful life of more than one year. Such 


assets are recorded at historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated acquisition 


value at the date of the donation. The Federal Government has a reversionary interest in those assets 


purchased with its funds which have a cost of $5,000 or more and an estimated useful life of at least 


one year. Depreciation of capital assets is computed using the straight-line method over estimated 


useful lives as follows: 


Assets Years 


Furniture, Equipment, and Data Processing 


Equipment 


3-5 


  


(g) Federal income taxes— Income taxes are not provided for in the financial statements since 


the Organization is exempt from federal and state income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the 


Internal Revenue Code and similar state provisions. Management is not aware of any activities that 


would jeopardize the Consortium’s tax exempt status. The Organization is not aware of any tax 


positions it has taken that are subject to a significant degree of uncertainty. Tax years for the past 


three years remain subject to examination by taxing authorities. 


(h) Accrued paid leave—It is the Organization’s policy to allow employees upon separation of 


employment, other than for cause, to be compensated up to 240 hours of accrued leave at their 


regular hourly rate of pay, conditional upon availability of funding. The Organization’s liability for 


compensated absences of their employees was $72,833, which is included in accrued expenses as of 


June 30, 2021.  


(i) Advertising—The Organization uses advertising to promote it programs among the audiences 


it serves. All advertising cost are expensed as incurred. For the year ended June 30, 2021, advertising 


expense was $97,869. 







HEARTLAND WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD, INC. 


DBA: CAREERSOURCE HEARTLAND 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


JUNE 30, 2021 
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:  (Continued) 


(j) Subsequent events—Management has performed an analysis of the activities and transactions 


subsequent to June 30, 2021 to determine the need for any adjustments to and/or disclosures within 


the audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021. Management has performed their 


analysis through October 4, 2021, the date the financial statements were available to be issued. 


(k)  Recent accounting pronouncements—The FASB and other entities issued new or 


modifications to, or interpretations of, existing accounting guidance during 2021. The Organization 


has considered the new pronouncements that altered accounting principles generally accepted in the 


United States of America, and other than as disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, does 


not believe that any other new or modified principles will have a material impact on the 


Organization’s reported financial position or operations in the near term. 


In February 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2016-02: Leases (Topic 842), to 


increase transparency and comparability among organizations by recognizing lease assets and lease 


liabilities on the consolidated statement of financial position and disclosing key information about 


leasing arrangements. The new standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 


2021, and may be adopted early. The Organization is currently evaluating the effect that 


implementation of the new standard will have on its financial position, results of operations, and 


cash flows. 


(2) Liquidity and Availability: 


Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting their 


use, within one year of the statement of the statement of financial position date, comprise the following: 


Cash and Cash Equivalents  $ 323,594  


Accounts Receivable  15,943 


Total  $ 339,537 


The organization has $339,537 of financial assets available within one year of the statement of financial 


position date, consisting of cash and cash equivalent and accounts receivable. None of these assets are 


subject to donor or other contractual restrictions that make them unavailable for general expenditure 


within one year of the statement of financial position date. The Department of Economic Opportunity 


allows the Organization to request cash draws approximate to amounts necessary for pending 


disbursements for two weeks of cash needs. 


 







HEARTLAND WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD, INC. 


DBA: CAREERSOURCE HEARTLAND 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


JUNE 30, 2021 
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(3) Concentration of Credit Risk and Significant Funding Source: 


(a) Cash and cash equivalents—As of June 30, 2021, the Organization had demand deposits 


with one financial institution of $323,594. The Organization has no policy requiring collateral or 


other security to support its deposits, although all demand deposits with banks are federally insured 


up to FDIC limitations. The demand deposits with the financial institutions are insured up to 


$250,000. At June 30, 2021, the Organization had $81,258 in excess of FDIC coverage.  


(b) Grants and other receivables—The Organization’s receivables are for amounts due under 


contracts with the State of Florida and Federal government agencies. The Board has no policy 


requiring collateral or other security to support its receivables. 


(c) Significant funding source—During the year ended June 30, 2021, the Organization received 


approximately 99.63%, of its funding from the United States Department of Labor, the United States 


Department of Health and Human Services, and the United States Department of Agriculture passed 


through the Department of Economic Opportunity. If a significant reduction in the level of this 


funding were to occur, it could have an adverse effect on the Organization’s program and activities. 


(4) Indirect Costs: 


All direct costs that can be identified as benefiting a specific funding source are allocated directly. Shared 


costs (indirect costs) that cannot be identified specifically with only one cost objective are allocated based 


on modified total direct costs for each funding source multiplied by the indirect cost rate approved by the 


state of Florida Department of Economic Opportunity.  


(5) Employee Benefits: 


The Organization has established a salary deferral plan under Section 401(k) of the IRC. The plan allows 


eligible employees to defer a portion of their compensation ranging from 1% to 75%. Such deferrals 


accumulate on a tax-deferred basis until the employee withdraws the funds. The Organization is required 


to match a portion of the employee’s contribution. For the year ended June 30, 2021, the rate of the 


Organization’s match was 100%, not to exceed 5% of each employee’s compensation. Total expense 


recorded for the Organization’s match was $33,838 for the year ended June 30, 2021. 


(6) Related Parties Transactions: 


In accordance with applicable regulations, the Organization’s board of directors includes representatives 


of private and public sector industries. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the Organization 


entered into contracts with certain private and public sector industries, with which certain board members 


associated, for the purpose of providing services to participants. Contracts are negotiated at arm’s length. 


During the year ended June 30, 2021, total payments for providing services to participants were 


approximately $938,627 and accounts payable were $124,627 at June 30, 2021.  







HEARTLAND WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD, INC. 


DBA: CAREERSOURCE HEARTLAND 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


JUNE 30, 2021 
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(7) Operating Leases: 


The Board has entered into various operating leases for office space and equipment. Future minimum 


rental payments on these existing lease commitments are as follows: 


Year ending June 30,  


2022 $ 235,311 


2023 190,724 


2024 168,849 


2025 168,188 


 $ 763,072 


For the year ended June 30, 2021, rent expense was $250,387. 


(8) Risks and Uncertainties: 


Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor 


agencies, principally the Federal government and the State of Florida. Any disallowed claims, including 


amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of 


expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time although the 


Organization expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 


During the year ended June 30, 2021, local, U.S., and world governments have encouraged self-isolation 


to curtail the spread of the global pandemic, coronavirus disease (COVID-19), by mandating temporary 


work stoppage in many sectors and imposing limitations on travel and size and duration of group 


meetings. Most industries are experiencing disruption to business operations and the impact of reduced 


consumer spending. There is unprecedented uncertainty surrounding the duration of the pandemic, its 


potential economic ramifications, and any government actions to mitigate them. Accordingly, while 


management cannot quantify the financial and other impact to the Company as of October 4, 2021, 


management believes that a material impact on the Company's financial position and results of future 


operations is reasonably possible. 
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COMPLIANCE SECTION 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER  


FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS  


BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 


WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 


To the Board of Directors, 


Heartland Workforce Investment Board, Inc. 
dba: CareerSource Heartland 


 


We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities and the general fund of the Heartland Workforce Investment Board, Inc., (the Organization) as 
of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the Organization’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon 


dated October 4, 2021. 


Internal Control over Financial Reporting 


In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Organization’s internal control over financial 
reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control. Accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control. 


A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 


Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 


first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 


financial reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material 


weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during 


our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider 


to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 


As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization’s financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions 
was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our 
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 


Purpose of this Report 


The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 


Daytona Beach, Florida 


October 4, 2021 







Federal Pass-Through


Assistance Entity Amount


Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Entity/ Listing Identification Federal Provided to


Federal Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures Subrecipients


United States Department of Labor:


Passed through the State of Florida, Department of Economic Opportunity:


Employment Service Cluster:


Wagner Peyser 17.207 038241 489$             -$               


Wagner Peyser 17.207 039206 27,052          -                 


Wagner Peyser Performance Incentives 17.207 038172 85,123          -                 


LVER Program 17.801 038807 6,857            -                 


LVER Program 17.801 039566 8,088            -                 


Total Employment Service Cluster 127,609        -                 


Workforce innovation and Opportunity Act Cluster:


WIOA Adult 17.258 038290 595,679        100,354         


WIOA Rural Initiatives 17.258 039156 41,250          3,467             


Soft Skills 17.258 037936 9,806            9,630             


Supplemental WIOA State Level 17.258 038267 19,306          48                  


Supplemental WIOA State Level 17.258 039179 21,213          4,392             


WIOA Performance Incentives 17.258 038846 147,820        2,358             


WIOA Performance Incentives 17.258 038151 54,528          -                 


WIOA Performance Incentives 17.258 038690 7,302            6,153             


COVID-19 PPE 17.258 038929 2,255            -                 


WIOA Youth 17.259 038117 499,876        442,753         


WIOA Youth 17.259 039073 218,551        198,940         


WIOA Rural Initiatives 17.259 039156 41,250          3,467             


Soft Skills 17.259 037936 9,806            9,630             


Supplemental WIOA State Level 17.259 038267 19,305          48                  


Supplemental WIOA State Level 17.259 039179 21,213          4,392             


WIOA Performance Incentives 17.259 038846 147,820        2,358             


WIOA Performance Incentives 17.259 038151 54,529          -                 


WIOA Performance Incentives 17.259 038690 7,302            6,153             


COVID-19 PPE 17.259 038929 2,255            -                 


WIOA Dislocated Worker 17.278 038314 365,522        -                 


WIOA Rural Initiatives 17.278 039156 42,500          27,739           


Soft Skills 17.278 037936 10,104          3,572             


Supplemental WIOA State Level 17.278 038267 21,718          9,922             


Supplemental WIOA State Level 17.278 039179 23,864          54                  


WIOA Performance Incentives 17.278 038846 152,300        4,941             


WIOA Performance Incentives 17.278 038151 56,181          2,430             


WIOA Performance Incentives 17.278 038690 7,524            -                 


WIOA Performance Incentives 17.278 039045 16,596          6,339             


COVID-19 PPE 17.278 038929 2,323            5,887             


Total Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act Cluster 2,619,698     855,027         


WIOA National Dislocated Worker Grants - COVID-19 17.277 038898 112,908        


Total United States Department of Labor 2,860,215     855,027         


U.S. Department of Agriculture:


Passed through the State of Florida, Department of Economic Opportunity:


Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Cluster:


Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program 10.561 038454 38,728          -                 


Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program 10.561 039481 100,536        -                 


Total U.S. Department of Agriculture and Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program 139,264        -                 


U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:


Passed through the State of Florida, Department of Economic Opportunity:


Welfare Transition Program 93.558 039138 254,733        -                 


Welfare Transition Program 93.558 039410 408,440        9,200             


Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 663,173        9,200             


TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 3,662,652$   864,227$       


HEARTLAND WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD, INC.


SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS


FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021


DBA: CAREERSOURCE HEARTLAND


The accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards are an integral part of this schedule.
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HEARTLAND WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD, INC. 


DBA: CAREERSOURCE HEARTLAND 


NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 


YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 


(1) Basis of Presentation: 


The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the Federal award activity of 


Heartland Workforce Investment Board, Inc. (the Organization) and is presented on the accrual basis of 


accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 


U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 


Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Therefore, some amounts presented in this 


schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the financial statements. 


(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: 


Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures 


are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of 


expenditures are not allowed or are limited as to reimbursement. 


(3) De Minimis Indirect Cost Rate Election: 


The Organization has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under 


Uniform Guidance. 
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HEARTLAND WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD, INC. 


DBA: CAREERSOURCE HEARTLAND 


SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 


FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 


I. Summary of Auditors’ Results: 


Financial Statements: 


Type of audit report issued on the financial statements:   Unmodified 


Internal control over financial reporting: 


Material weakness(es) identified?      yes    X  no 


Significant deficiency(ies) identified?   yes    X  none reported 


Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?   yes    X  no 


Federal Awards: 


Internal control over major Federal programs: 


Material weakness(es) identified?      yes    X  no 


Significant deficiency(ies) identified?      yes    X  none reported 


Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major 
Federal programs:          Unmodified 


Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 
in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?      yes    X  no 


Identification of major Federal programs: 


CFDA Number(s) Program Name 


17.258, 17.259, 17.278 
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity 


Act (WIOA) Cluster  


Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A 
and type B Federal programs: 


  $750,000 


Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?    X  yes      No 


II. Financial Statement Findings: None. 


III. Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Costs: None. 


IV. State of Florida, Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO) Reporting Requirements: The 
Organization performed timely reconciliations between the general ledger accounting system and 
the Subrecipient Enterprise Resource Application maintained by DEO. Also, based on the DEO 
reporting requirements, there were no additional findings required to be reported in FY2021. 


V. Federal Award Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings: There were no audit findings for the 
year ended June 30, 2020. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL 


PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN 


ACCORDANCE WITH THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 


To the Board of Directors, 


Heartland Workforce Investment Board, Inc. 
dba: CareerSource Heartland 
 


Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 


We have audited the Heartland Workforce Investment Board, Inc.’s (the Organization) compliance with 


the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) 


Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Organization’s major 


federal programs for the years ended June 30, 2021. The Organization’s major federal programs are 


identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and 


questioned costs. 


Management’s Responsibility 


Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 


grants applicable to its federal programs. 


Auditors’ Responsibility 


Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Board’s major federal programs 


based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of 


compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 


standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 


Comptroller General of the United States; the special audit guidance provided by the State of Florida 


Department of Economic Opportunity and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 


Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 


Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance 


require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 


with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect 


on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 


Board’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 


necessary in the circumstances. 


We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Board’s compliance. 
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 


In our opinion, the Organization complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 


requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 


programs for the year ended June 30, 2021. 


Report on Internal Control over Compliance 


Management of the Organization is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 


over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing 


our audit of compliance, we considered the Organization’s internal control over compliance with the 


types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program as a 


basis for designing auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 


expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal 


control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing 


an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an 


opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control over compliance. 


A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 


compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 


functions, to prevent, or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 


federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 


deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 


reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 


program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 


internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 


compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 


weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 


with governance. 


Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 


paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 


compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 


deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 


material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  


The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 


testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the 


Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 


Daytona Beach, Florida 


October 4, 2021 












 


July 1 ,  2020 – June 30 ,  2021  


 


Businesses 
Served 


 


Business 
Services 
Provided 


 
Job 


Orders 
Entered 


 
Job Fairs / 


Recruitments 
Held 


Attendees at 
Job Fairs / 


Recruitments 


 1,389 13,243 


2,059 


450 65 


29 Business 
Services 


Amount Expended on Employer Training Grants: 
(On-the-Job Training, Employed Worker Training, & Work Experience) $13,231 


Jobseekers Served 


Jobseeker Services Provided 4,724 29,697 


Employers 
Participated in 


Job Fairs / 
Recruitments 


C
UM


ULA
TIV


E 
EA


RN
IN


G
S 


Prior to 
Training 


$421,797 


After Training $1,093,970 


90 
Adults & 


Dislocated 
Workers Served 


233 Youth Served 


046  Earned a HSD/GED  


059  Participated in Internships 


078   YO
UT


H 
SE


RV
IC


ES
 


RETURN ON 
INVESTMENT 


248.9% 
 


An equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services available upon request to individuals with disabilities. 
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October 4, 2021 


To the Board of Directors of 


  Heartland Workforce Investment Board, Inc.: 


We have audited the financial statements of the Heartland Workforce Investment Board, Inc. (the 


Organization) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and have issued our report thereon dated 


October 4, 2021. Professional standards require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our 


audit. 


Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit 


As communicated in our engagement letter dated May 11, 2020, our responsibility, as described by 


professional standards, is to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements that have 


been prepared by management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in 


conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of 


the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your respective responsibilities. 


Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain 


reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 


misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial 


reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 


the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial 


reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the Organization solely 


for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such 


internal control. 


We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our 


professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. 


However, we are not required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to 


communicate to you. 


Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 


We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to 


you. 


Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence 


The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, and our firm have complied with all relevant 


ethical requirements regarding independence.  
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In order to eliminate threats to independence related to non-attest services that we provide you, we have 
instituted a quality control review over all non-attest work. Also, in the engagement letter, we identified a 
person within your organization with the skills, knowledge and expertise to review our non-attest work on 
your behalf. 


Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Accounting Practices 


Significant Accounting Policies 


Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the 


significant accounting policies adopted by the Heartland Workforce Investment Board, Inc. is included in 


Note 1 to the financial statements. There has been no initial selection of accounting policies and no 


changes in significant accounting policies or their application during 2021. No matters have come to our 


attention that would require us, under professional standards, to inform you about (1) the methods used to 


account for significant unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant accounting policies in 


controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. 


Significant Accounting Estimates 
 


Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 


based on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and 


experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting 


estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of 


the possibility that future events affecting them may differ markedly from management’s current 


judgments. There were no sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements during at June 


30, 2021. 


Financial Statement Disclosures 


Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive because 


of their significance to financial statement users. Listed below are such disclosures affecting the financial 


statements at June 30, 2021: 


• Note 2 – Liquidity and Availability 


• Note 3 – Concentrations of Credit Risk and Significant Funding Source  


• Note 7 – Operating Leases 


• Note 8 – Risks and Uncertainties 


Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit 


We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of the 


audit. 


Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements 


For the purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and 


likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and 
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communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards required us to 


also communicate the effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes 


of transactions, account balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole and each 


applicable opinion unit. 


• $29,871 adjustment to record prepaid insurance at year-end. 


In addition, professional standards require us to communicate to you all material, corrected misstatements 


that were brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit procedures. No such 


misstatements were noted. 


Disagreements with Management 


For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, 


whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing 


matter, which could be significant to the financial statements or the auditors’ report. No such 


disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 


Representations Requested from Management 


We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the attached 


management representation letter dated October 4, 2021. 


Management Consultations with Other Accountants 


In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 


matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other 


accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters. 


Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues 


In the normal course of our professional association with the Heartland Workforce Investment Board, Inc., 


we generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 


standards, operating and regulatory conditions affecting the entity, and operational plans and strategies 


that may affect the risks of material misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted in a condition to 


our retention as auditors.  


Comments and Recommendations 


During our audit we became aware of matters that are opportunities for strengthening internal controls 


and operating efficiency. Listed below are our comments and suggestions regarding those matters: 


Information Technology 


We noted backups were not tested during the audited period. We recommend periodically testing backups. 


This will help ensure data recovery in the case of a disaster or cyber-attack. 
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Management’s Response: 


CareerSource Heartland thanks James Moore and Co., P.L. for this recommendation and agrees that 


testing backups helps to ensure that data recovery can occur in the event of attack or disaster.  A process 


and schedule for testing backups had been developed.  However, changes to the DNS server and firewalls 


impacted the testing system connectivity.  As soon as DNS and firewall changes are fully completed, the 


backup testing process and schedule will be redeveloped and implemented.  Backups are currently 


occurring onsite and in the cloud.  The cloud backup should successfully recover data in an emergency.  


Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements 


Pursuant to professional standards, our responsibility as auditors for other information in documents 


containing Heartland Workforce Investment Board, Inc.’s audited financial statements does not extend 


beyond the financial information identified in the audit report, and we are not required to perform any 


procedures to corroborate such other information. However, in accordance with such standards, we have: 


We have made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of 


preparing the information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles 


generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from 


the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the 


financial statements. We compared and reconciled the required supplementary information to the 


underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements 


themselves. 


Our responsibility also includes communicating to you any information which we believe is a material 


misstatement of fact. Nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that such information, or its 


manner of presentation, is materially inconsistent with the information, or manner of its presentation, 


appearing in the financial statements. 


This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management of 


Heartland Workforce Investment Board, Inc. and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone 


other than these specified parties. 


Very truly yours, 


JAMES MOORE & CO., P.L. 







